
 
 

Board of Education Meeting Agenda 
 
Date: Monday, March 1, 2021 
  
TBCC Board Meeting  Zoom – 5:00pm – 7:00pm 
 
Item Description                 Resource 

1. Call to Order • Acknowledge Guests ------------------------------------------------- Chair Gervasi 
 

2. Consent Agenda:  --------------------------------------------------------------- (Action) Chair Gervasi 
a. Approval of Agenda 
b. Approval of February 1, 2021 Meeting Minutes 
c. Personnel Report ………………………………………………………...…….. Director Ryan 

 
3. Invitation for Public Comment --------------------------------------------------------- Chair Gervasi 

Available at the beginning of the meeting is an opportunity for the public to comment on 
any issue within the jurisdiction of the Tillamook Bay Community College Board of 
Education. The Board Chair may determine reasonable time, space and manner 
limitations. At the conclusion of public comment, individual members of the Board may 
respond to comments made by those who have addressed the Board, may ask staff to 
review a matter, or may ask that a matter be put on a future agenda. 
 

4. New Business and/or focused policy discussions 
a. Budget Assumptions for 2021-2022 ………………………………….………… VP Williams 
b. Budget Committee Membership Approval …………..………………. (Action) VP Williams 
c. 2021-2022 Tuition/Fee Changes: First Reading ………………..………..…… VP Williams 
d. College Council Update ………………………………….….... Michelle DeGraffenreid and 
                                                                                                                      Britta Lawrence 
e. Revised Board Policies 100 and 101: Second Reading ……... (Action) President Tomlin 
f. Academic Calendar Approval ……………………………...........……. (Action) VP Rivenes 

 
5. Information-Only Items (Board members may request any item be placed on the 

discussion agenda) 
a. Board Appreciation ………………………………………….…………..…. President Tomlin 
b. Career to Career and First Class Scholar Notes …..……………………….…. VP Hanson 
c. Program Review: General Education and Transfer Degrees ……………..… VP Rivenes 
d. Accreditation Prep: Shared Governance, College Involvement ………..President Tomlin 
e. Financial Report …………………………...……………………….……………. VP Williams 
f. President’s Report ………………..…………………………………….….. President Tomlin 

 
6. Board Member Discussion Items ----------------------------------------------------- Chair Gervasi 

 
7. Adjournment ---------------------------------------------------------------------- (Action) Chair Gervasi 

 
8. Executive Session -------------------------------------------------------------- (Action) Chair Gervasi 

Move to the Executive Session of the Meeting. 
 

Pursuant to O.R.S. § 192.660 (2)(i) legal notice is hereby given to the members of the 
Tillamook Bay Community College Board of Education (Board) and to the general public 
that the Board has elected to go into Executive Session for the purpose of discussing 
personnel related issues on Monday, March 1, 2021 at 7:00pm in a virtual format.  



Agenda Item 1 
March 1, 2021 

 

 
Call to Order  

 
RECOMMENDATION 
CALL THE BOARD MEETING TO ORDER & ACKNOWLEDGE GUESTS 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION………………………………………………………Chair Gervasi 



Agenda Item 2 
March 1, 2021 

 

 

Approval of the Consent Agenda 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
ACTION 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION ------------------------------------------------------------------- (Action) Chair Gervasi 
MOTION TO APPROVE THE CONSENT AGENDA FOR THE MARCH MEETING. 
 
Items for approval: 

a. Approval of Agenda 
b. Approval of February 1, 2021 Meeting Minutes 
c. Approval of the Personnel Report 

 



Agenda Item 2.a 
March 1, 2021 

 

 

Approval of the Agenda 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
MOTION TO APPROVE THE AGENDA FOR THE MARCH MEETING 
 

Board of Education Meeting Agenda 
 
Date: Monday, March 1, 2021 
  
TBCC Board Meeting  Zoom – 5:00pm – 7:00pm 
 
Item Description                                    Resource 

1. Call to Order • Acknowledge Guests ------------------------------------------------------------------- Chair Gervasi 
 

2. Consent Agenda:  --------------------------------------------------------------------------------- (Action) Chair Gervasi 
a. Approval of Agenda 
b. Approval of February 1, 2021 Meeting Minutes 
c. Personnel Report ………………………………………………………………………...…….. Director Ryan 

 
3. Invitation for Public Comment ---------------------------------------------------------------------------- Chair Gervasi 

Available at the beginning of the meeting is an opportunity for the public to comment on any issue within 
the jurisdiction of the Tillamook Bay Community College Board of Education. The Board Chair may 
determine reasonable time, space and manner limitations. At the conclusion of public comment, individual 
members of the Board may respond to comments made by those who have addressed the Board, may 
ask staff to review a matter, or may ask that a matter be put on a future agenda. 
 

4. New Business and/or focused policy discussions 
a. Budget Assumptions for 2021-2022 ………………………………….………………………… VP Williams 
b. Budget Committee Membership Approval …………..………………………………. (Action) VP Williams 
c. 2021-2022 Tuition/Fee Changes: First Reading ………………..………………………..…… VP Williams 
d. College Council Update …………………………………..... Michelle DeGraffenreid and Britta Lawrence 
e. Revised Board Policies 100 and 101: Second Reading ……………….……... (Action) President Tomlin 
f. Academic Calendar Approval …………………………….................................……. (Action) VP Rivenes 

 
5. Information-Only Items (Board members may request any item be placed on the discussion 

agenda) 
a. Board Appreciation ………………………………………….…………………………...…. President Tomlin 
b. Career to Career and First Class Scholar Notes ……………………….……………….….…. VP Hanson 
c. Program Review: General Education and Transfer Degrees ……………………………...… VP Rivenes 
d. Accreditation Prep: Shared Governance, College Involvement ……………………….. President Tomlin 
e. Financial Report …………………………...……………………….………………………….…. VP Williams 
f. President’s Report ………………..…………………………………….…………………... President Tomlin 

 
6. Board Member Discussion Items ------------------------------------------------------------------------ Chair Gervasi 

 
7. Adjournment ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- (Action) Chair Gervasi 

 
8. Executive Session --------------------------------------------------------------------------------- (Action) Chair Gervasi 

Move to the Executive Session of the Meeting. 
 
Pursuant to O.R.S. § 192.660 (2)(i) legal notice is hereby given to the members of the Tillamook Bay Community 
College Board of Education (Board) and to the general public that the Board has elected to go into Executive Session 
for the purpose of discussing personnel related issues on Monday, March 1, 2021 at 7:00pm in a virtual format.  



Agenda Item 2.b 
March 1, 2021 

 

 

 

February 1, 2021 Board of Education  
Meeting Minutes 

Date: Monday, February 1, 2021 
  
TBCC Board Meeting  Zoom – 5:00pm – 7:00pm 
 
Members in Attendance:  Kathy Gervasi, Mary Faith Bell, Pam Zweifel, Betsy McMahon, Jennifer 
Purcell 
 
Members Not in Attendance:  Tamra Perman, Mary Jones 
 
TBCC Staff in Attendance: President Ross Tomlin, Executive Assistant Candi Merrill, Director Pat 
Ryan, VP Rhoda Hanson, VP Teresa Rivenes, Director Erin McCarley, Executive Director Heidi 
Luquette, VP Kyra Williams, Director Sheryl Neu, Director Arlene Soto, Faculty Member Michael 
Weissenfluh  
 
Guests in Attendance:  Rebecca Sukanan, TBCC Pre-Nursing Student 
 
Description                                   
Call to Order • Acknowledge Guests (Agenda item 1) ----------------------------------------  Chair Gervasi 
Chair Gervasi called the meeting to order at 5:00pm. 
 
Consent Agenda (Agenda items 2, 2.a, 2.b, 2.c) -------------------------------------- (Action) Chair Gervasi 
There were no additions or changes to the minutes from the January meeting or to the agenda for this 
meeting.   
 
Director Ryan gave the Personnel Report. 
 
The Personnel Report in the packet is incomplete due to changes that happened after the packet was 
sent out. Open positions include a Full time Science instructor, Registrar, a CDL Driving Instructor, an 
AV/Instructional Support Specialist, a Career Education Advisor, and a SBDC Business Development 
Advisor.  The part-time Spanish GED instructor position has been filled.  Angelica Ortiz-Rios was hired 
as a recruiter with grant-funding from the Workforce Investment Board.  She is working with students 
ages 14-21 who have dropped out of high school or are in danger of dropping out.   
 
Mary Faith Bell motioned to approve the consent agenda. Betsy McMahon seconded the motion.  The 
motion carried.  
 
Invitation for Public Comment (Agenda item 3) ------------------------------------------------- Chair Gervasi 
There were no comments from the public.  

 
New Business and/or focused policy discussions (Agenda item 4) 
 
Revised Technology Plan (Agenda item 4.a) ……………………………..……(ACTION) Director Neu 
TBCC updates its technology plan on a regular basis and plans for about five years in advance. In the 
most recent update, Director Neu added ‘Appendix C’ to track classroom equipment such as 
microscopes and cameras.  The plan helps us track and establish replacement cycles for all TBCC-
owned tech equipment including the phone system, computers and network, classroom equipment, 
the Learning Management System (LMS), and associated technology. The technology plan also helps 
TBCC’s staff and accreditors understand what the IT department does and how the work is done.  



Agenda Item 2.b 
March 1, 2021 

 

 

With HyFlex classrooms, students can attend in person or remotely in real time, or watch a recording 
of the class session after the fact. At present, IT is setting up all classrooms with HyFlex capacity and 
expects that work to be completed in February.  IT will then set up a HyFlex room in the PRI building.  
TBCC plans to upgrade a lot of its older equipment in the coming months. As always, IT will try to 
complete major upgrades with as little downtime as possible. 
 
The Board had no questions but commented that managing IT at TBCC is a big job and Sheryl has 
done a great job.  
 
Betsy McMahon motioned to approve the Revised Technology Plan. Mary Faith Bell seconded the 
motion.  The motion carried.  
 
New Student Services Policies: Second Reading (Agenda item 4.b) ……....… (Action) VP Hanson 
 
VP Hanson explained that verbage from TBCC’s equity policy has been added to each of the three 
Student Services policies: Policy 502, 503 and 504.  She thanked the board for a great conversation 
about the importance of incorporating equity language last month. The Board thanked VP Hanson for 
making that change.  
 
Jennifer Purcell motioned to approve Policies #502, 503, and 504. Mary Faith Bell seconded the 
motion.  The motion carried.  
 
 
Changes to Board Policies 100 and 101: First Reading (Agenda item 4.c) …...… President Tomlin 
 
While writing the accredition report and referencing Board policies, it was noticed that both policy 100 
and 101 have the same title: Board Procedures.  This is confusing and is not an accurate description 
of the content of the policies. Policy 101 also has a section at the end (Employment Rights) that is 
really better suited to be a part of Policy #100.   
 
President Tomlin recommended title changes for both.  Policy 100 Board Procedures will now become 
Board Duties and Responsibilities.  Policy 101 Board Procedures will now become Board Meeting 
Procedures.   
 
President Tomlin also recommended that Section 101.4 be moved from Policy 101 to Policy 100.  It 
will now become section 100.7 of Policy 100 Board Duties and Responsibilities.  
 
This is a first reading for these changes to Board Policies 100 and 101, so no action is required at this 
time.  The board had no questions or concerns about the changes. 
 
Discussion of Tuition/Fees 2021-22 (Agenda item 4.d) …………………………………… VP Williams 
 
VP Williams stated that it is time to talk about tuition & fees for 2021 – 22. Our intentin is to open the 
discussion; we don’t have a recommendation at this time. TBCC is currently the least expensive 
community college in Oregon when considering both tuition and fees together. Mt Hood and Portland 
community colleges are not planning for an increase, but they are already the most expensive 
colleges in Oregon. Some colleges are proposing an increase in tution and fees and some colleges 
are considering eliminating online and hybrid fees.   
We don’t yet have a firm picture of the State’s budget for the next biennium. The Governor’s budget 
would have us get the same amount we had in the last biennium. We would need $60M more just to 
keep us at the current service and staffing levels.  
 



Agenda Item 2.b 
March 1, 2021 

 

 

Item 4.d.2 in the Board packet shows TBCC tuition and fees for 2019-20 and 2020-21. 30-33% of our 
classes are online and TBCC does charge an online learning fee per course which goes to support the 
cost and maintenance of the Learning Management System (LMS).  (Side note: We did not charge a 
hybrid/online fee for those courses that were planned to be face-to-face in the classroom but had to be 
transitioned to online last Spring because of COVID.)  Some colleges are eliminating online fees 
because they are using the LMS for all classes, including face-to-face. Those colleges will remain 
revenue neutral by increasing tuition/fees for all students, not just online students. Some members of 
the Board felt the online fee per course should be removed. 
 
TBCC would like to decrease late fees this year as an effort toward our student retention goal, but we 
are not ready to recommend any other changes yet. VP Williams explained that we do not intend to 
increase our revenue, but state funds are likely to be reduced and we will not be able to offer the 
same level of service with less. 
 
The board was concerned about any increase in tuition and fees, but stated they understoon the need 
to maintain the current level of support. 
 
TBCC will be prepared to make a recommendation on 2021-2022 tuition and fees at the March Board 
meeting. 
 
President’s Evaluation Process for 2020-21 (Agenda item 4.e) …………..……….. President Tomlin 
 
The President presented the revised evaluation form, which incorporates the changes recommended 
by the Board, and summarized the steps and timeline for completing the evaluation process.  The 
evaluation form will be sent out to board members before the end of the week.  Board members are 
asked to complete it no later than March 1. The President will send out his annual summary report 
combining all the monthly update reports sometime this week for Board members to use in completing 
the evaluation form. 
 
The board confirmed that the evaluation form will be sent to them as an editable Word document but 
had no other questions. 
 
Update: 2020-21 Project Lists (Agenda item 4.f) ………………….………………….. President Tomlin 
 
The President presented an overview of one aspect of planning at TBCC wherein each department 
develops a list of strategic projects and a list of operational projects. These lists are completed around 
this time each year and incorporate information about budget needed to complete each project. In the 
Spring, TBCC completes budgeting for the upcoming year and is able to budget for the projects at that 
time. Mid-way through the year, the Leadership Team reports progress on their projects.  At the end of 
the year, a final report is done on projects and the Team discusses not only what was accomplished, 
but also what did not go as planned and what we might do differently the next time. At that time we 
decide whether to carry a project over to the next year. Mid-winter is the time to report progress on the 
2020-21 projects, and the President wanted to update the board as well.  Updated progress updates 
for each department are included in the Board Packet.   
 
Department heads each highlighted just one of the projects on their list: 

• Arlene Soto/SBDC: 17 businesses were recruited for the Small Business Management 
program.  

• Erin McCarley: Inclusive data project. TBCC identified some issues in the way that student 
name and gender identity data is collected and wanted to make some changes.   

• Heidi Luquette: Website Redesign 
• Kyra Williams: Refine collections process 



Agenda Item 2.b 
March 1, 2021 

 

 

• Pat Ryen: Increase campus security with additional surveillance/security cameras 
• Rhoda Hanson:  Initiate a Summer Start Program to help students transition from high school 
• Ross Tomlin:  Facilities Master Plan was completed. This year that goal will transition to 

implemention.  Get $8M from the state for capital construction funds. 
• Sheryl Neu: Single Sign On should be ready to implement in Spring. 
• Teresa Rivenes: Fully implement the Student Learning Outcomes (SLO) process. 

 
Budget Committee Membership (Agenda item 4.g) ………………………………..……… VP Williams 
 
Budget Committee Member Van Moe retired and moved out of the area, so a new Budget Committee 
member from Zone 2 is needed.  One person has expressed interest. Please let President Tomlin or 
VP Williams know of anyone else that might be interested. The Budget Committee meeting will be 
held in April, and hope to have a nomination for the Board to approve at the March Board meeting.  
 
Information-Only Items (Agenda item 5) 
 
Retention Goal (WIG) Outcome (Agenda item 5.a) ……………….………………… Director McCarley 
Accreditation Prep (Agenda item 5.b) ……………….………………………..……… Director McCarley 
Agenda items 5.a and 5.b were merged together at Director McCarley’s recommendation as the 
discussion about TBCC’s WIG for 2020-21 leads naturally into discussing WIGs in general and that is 
something Board members need to know in preparation for the accreditation visit.  
 
TBCC’s Wildly Important Goal (WIG) is based on prior performance on our strategic plan.  Fall to 
Winter retention has been fluctuating between 73% and 74% for the last few years.  For 2020-21, 
TBCC’s WIG was to retain 80% of students from Fall to Winter term.  That goal was not achieved in 
spite of staff working extra hard to engage with students. Covid created an extremely challenging 
year. The 70% retention that was achieved is exceptional given the circumstances.  
 
The WIG is a key part of the strategic planning model. Every department sets smaller goals that 
contribute to one: the WIG. To summarize the process of strategic planning, core themes drive goals, 
and progress towards goals is objectively measured on a regular basis.  Strategic projects are created 
to achieve goals, and most importantly, the wildly important goal. Each department within TBCC has 
strategic and operational projects which contribute to the larger goals and ultimately, the WIG. 
 
Director McCarley showed, as an example, project lists and goal lists that all contributed to progress 
towards the WIG. 
 
LT Check-in: SBDC Update (Agenda item 5.c) ……………………………………………. Director Soto 
Director Soto reported on the activities of the Tillamook Small Business Development Center. In an 
average year, the Center sees approximately 120 business owners for consultations.  This year to 
date, the Center has met with 165. Additionally, there were many more phone consultations that 
couldn’t be counted. 
The number of clients increased dramatically due to the impact of COVID on businesses. The SBDC 
helped clients raise over $881K. That included funds for PPA from the Small Business Administration 
and funds from the CARES Act.  
 
The SBDC developed a course on launching your own business that will be taught in Spanish. It was 
to have run in Spring 2020 but could not because of COVID.  It will run this Spring. 
The SBDC posted 12 training events online for the commercial fishing businesses and had 139 
particpants.  One training video, posted on YouTube, got 354 views. 
 
The SBDC helped review grants for $134,000 that went to child-care businesses. 



Agenda Item 2.b 
March 1, 2021 

 

 

 
The governor’s budget shows a 60% decrease in state funding for SBDC next year.  The SBDC 
Accreditation visit will be coming up this Spring. Director Soto has submitted her letter of retirement 
and will be leaving the Center in July. 
 
Comments from the Board included praise and thanks for the work done by Director Soto and the 
SBDC of Tillamook and best wishes in retirement, but also concern for the loss of her expertise on 
behalf of the community. 
 
ASTBCC Report (Agenda item 5.d) ….…………………………………….………….……. President Dial 
 
The ASTBCC President was not present and no report was given.  
 
Financial Report (Agenda item 5.e) ….………..……………………..………………….….... VP Williams 
 
The Financial Report for the month of December is included in the packet. Interest earnings are down 
and rental of our facilities are down. Everything else looks good. TBCC’s ending balance as of the end 
of December is higher than it was last year at the same time. TBCC is underspending our budgets, so 
the general fund will be just fine. 
 
President’s Report (Agenda item 5.f) …………………………………..…………...…. President Tomlin 
 
The list of topics of President Tomlin’s report is included in the packet.  Additionally, he mentioned the 
following points: 
 
• Career to Career and First Class Scholars will send a note, post a note on the bulletin board, or 

create a one-minute video message to the Board.  Those will be shared at the March meeting.  
• TBCC is closely monitoring the 2021 Legislative session. There are a number of bills that are 

concerning to community colleges.  Most of these bills will probably drop off the list as the session 
continues; we will stay in the process, make our best case for what we need and will keep the 
board informed. 

• Colleges are not on the list of priority groups for COVID vaccines.  We will keep pushing to get 
vaccines at the earliest possible date.  Our faculty and Student Services staff have been working 
with students for several months now, including high school students. 

• We will be submitting an Economic Development Administration (EDA) grant by the end of 
February.  If we get the grant, it will cover a large portion of the improvements that will need to be 
made to the Center for Industrial Technology.   

• The CTE Space Needs Task Force continues to meet.  We need approximately 6000-7000 more 
square feet, primarily dedicated to Healthcare programs.  We are working with FFA (architectural 
firm) to make adjustments to the building plan to incorporate that space. We will meet with the 
Legislature on Capitol Construction funds sometime during the spring. 

• We had a good turnout for the Habitat for Humanity volunteer day on the Martin Luther King 
holiday; 20 faculty, staff and students participated.  

• A note on TBCC Board of Education elections.  In addition to Kathy, Tamra and Pam, Jennifer will 
also be up for election this year.  She was appointed in 2018, and elected in 2019 to finish up the 
last two years of a 4-year term.  March 18 is the deadline to submit the SEL 190 form and filing fee 
to the County Clerk’s office. The election is May 18. 

• Virtual Happy Hour: We will change the time to a bit later to make it easier for board members to 
attend.  We will schedule the next one in March or April at 4:30 and will avoid Tuesdays and 
Thursdays.  

 
Board Member Discussion Items (Agenda item 6) ---------------------------------------------- Chair Gervasi 



Agenda Item 2.b 
March 1, 2021 

 

 

There were no Board Member Discussion items. 
 
Adjournment (Agenda item 7) -------------------------------------------------------------- (Action) Chair Gervasi 
 
Pam Zweifel motioned to adjourn the meeting.  Betsy McMahon seconded the motion.  The motion 
carried.   The meeting adjourned at 6:46pm. 
 
Executive Session (Agenda item 8) ------------------------------------------------------- (Action) Chair Gervasi 

Move to the Executive Session of the Meeting. 
 

Pursuant to O.R.S. § 192.660 (2)(i) legal notice is hereby given to the members of the 
Tillamook Bay Community College Board of Education (Board) and to the general public that 
the Board has elected to go into Executive Session for the purpose of discussing personnel 
related issues on Monday, February 1, 2021 at 7:00pm in a virtual format. 

 
The Executive Session ended at 7:00pm. 



Agenda Item 2.c 
March 1, 2021 

 

 

Personnel 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
CONSENT AGENDA 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION -----------------------------------------------------------------  Director Ryan 
 
 

Position Title Application 
Review 
Begins 

Start 
Date 

Comment Screening 
Committee 

Chair 

 

 
Career Education Advisor 

Feb. 1, 
2021 

TBD Applications 
are being 
reviewed 

Rhoda 
Hanson 

 

SBDC Adviser 
 

Feb. 15, 
2021 

TBC Applications 
are being 
reviewed 

Arlene Soto 
 

College Registrar  March 1, 
2021 

TBD Open until filled Rhoda 
Hanson 

 

AV/Instructional Support Specialist Feb. 20, 
2021 

TBC Open until filled Teresa 
Rivenes 

 

Science Instructor March 1, 
2021 

Fall 2021 Open until filled Teresa 
Rivenes 

 

      

 
  
 



Agenda Item 3 
March 1, 2021 

 

 
Invitation of Public Comment 

 
RECOMMENDATION 

AVAILABLE AT BOTH THE BEGINNING AND END OF THE MEETING IS AN 
OPPORTUNITY FOR THE PUBLIC TO COMMENT ON ANY ISSUE WITHIN THE 
JURISDICTION OF THE TILLAMOOK BAY COMMUNITY COLLEGE BOARD OF 
EDUCATION.  THE BOARD CHAIR MAY DETERMINE REASONABLE TIME, SPACE 
AND MANNER LIMITATIONS.  AT THE CONCLUSION OF PUBLIC COMMENT, 
INDIVIDUAL MEMBERS OF THE BOARD MAY RESPOND TO COMMENTS MADE BY 
THOSE WHO HAVE ADDRESSED THE BOARD, MAY ASK STAFF TO REVIEW A 
MATTER, OR MAY ASK THAT A MATTER BE PUT ON A FUTURE AGENDA. 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION………………………………………………………Chair Gervasi 



Agenda Item 4 
March 1, 2021 

 

 

NEW BUSINESS AND/OR FOCUSED POLICY 
DISCUSSIONS 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION -----------------------------------------------------------------------  Chair Gervasi 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



Agenda Item 4.a 
March 1, 2021 

 

 
 

 

Budget Assumptions 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
INFORMATION ONLY- DISCUSS ASSUMPTIONS AS OUTLINED BELOW FOR FY 2021-2022 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION …………………………………………..………….……… VP WILLIAMS 
 
General Fund  
Revenues 

• General Fund Beginning Fund Balance - $1.6M  Based on revenue projections using January 
2021 data and underspending of FY 2020-2021 budgets by 5%.  This will continue to fluctuate 
as more revenue and expense data is collected. 

• Community College Support Fund - $2.67M based on HECC’s distribution formula worksheet 
and GRB’s budget of $641M or $2.78M based on potential legislature budget of $673M. 

• Property Taxes – Generally increases by approximately 3% based on State law and increase 
slightly for new construction being added to the property tax rolls, but other CC’s discussing 
communications with their County’s regarding appeals that are decreasing this amount.  Would 
be interested to hear more about this before settling on a projection for the new year.  
Collections for Tillamook County for the current year are meeting FY 2020-2021 budget 
projections. 

• Local Contracts – Decreasing.  Contract with NWRESD to support a dual credit writing instructor 
is decreasing or going away.  Other contracts under discussion may offset this. 

• Tuition and Fees – While enrollment growth is hard to project at this point due to COVID, not all 
enrollment generates revenue in the same way.  Credit tuition for FY 2020-2021 is an anomaly 
and is expected to exceed the budget. However, it is likely that it will exceed budget due to high 
school students enrolled in TBCC courses, rather than dual credit courses.  Budgeted tuition will 
likely not increase, but the budget for fees will increase slightly. 

• Interest income – Interest earnings have fallen dramatically for FY 2020-2021.  Budget will 
decrease by about 50%. 

• Transfers – Any amounts transferred from reserves proposed will come later in the budget 
development process. 

 
Expenditures 
Wages & Benefits – Initial Recommendations. Could change as we get into the budget development 
process. 

• Step increase for all eligible regular faculty and staff 
• No COLA – Inflation calculator for the calendar year reported by the State of Oregon 

Employment Department is 0% 
• No increase on the cap for healthcare insurance and healthcare optout stipend. Increased by 

2% in FY 2020-2021 and healthcare insurance rates ended up being flat for the year. 
 
Materials and Services 
No percentage increase or decrease projected in these costs.  Budget managers develop what they 
need based on current spending and projected increases in items such as contracts and liability 
insurances. 
 
Ending Fund Balance and Contingency 
Will be developed based on the Board Reserve Policy.  General Fund Ending Fund Balance will be 
budgeted no lower than $1.2M.  Additional contingency will be set aside for salary survey adjustments. 



 Agenda Item 4.b 
March 1, 2021 

 

                              
 

Budget Committee Membership Approval 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
ACTION ITEM: APPOINT NEW BUDGET COMMITTEE MEMBER AND REAPPOINT BUDGET COMMITTEE 
MEMBERS TO NEW TERM 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION ------------------------------------------------------------------------- VP Williams 

The budget committee is comprised of fourteen (14) members: seven (7) members of the advisory 
committee and seven (7) elected Board of Education members, each representing one of seven 
zones.  It is the duty of the budget committee to analyze and approve the College’s proposed 
operating budget and forward its recommendations to the Board for final consideration.  As a part of 
the budget review and approval process, the budget committee holds public meeting/s at which 
citizens of the community are invited to give testimony on the budget before it is approved by the 
budget committee. 

Budget Committee members have three year terms. 

 

Zone Board Member Community Representative Term Expires 

1 Mary Jones Christi Clark 6/30/20 
6/30/2006/30/23 

2 Pam Zweifel Van Moe Van Moe  Marilyn 
Roossinck 6/30/22 

3 Kathy Gervasi  Justin Aufdermauer 6/30/20 
6/30/2006/30/23 

4 Betsy McMahon Steve Vanderhoef 6/30/21 

5 Jennifer Purcell Christian Weber 6/30/21 

6 –At large Tamra Perman  Janet Reidel 6/30/20 
6/30/206/30/23 

7 –At large Mary Faith Bell Doug Olson 6/30/22 
 
 



  Agenda Item 4.b.1 
  March 1, 2021 
 
 

 
 

 

 

BUDGET COMMITTEE MEMBER APPLICATION 

 

Contact Information  

Name:     Marilyn J Roossinck           

Phone:   503 773 9108   Email:  mjr25@psu.edu           
Address:   1860 Chinook Ave, Oceanside, OR 97134            

 

Please answer the following questions thoughtfully and thoroughly.  

 

1.) Please share why you would like to be a member of the Tillamook Bay Community 
College Budget Committee.   

I am very interested in Community College Education, and would like to become more 
involved in TBCC in the future.  Helping to develop the budget seems like an excellent 
way to learn more about the College operations. 

 

 

2.) What is your experience with developing organizational budgets?   

 

I have developed many budgets for federal grants for my own research lab, but not for any 
higher level organization than that. 

 

 

Submit to:  Tillamook Bay Community College 
Office of the President 
4301 Third Street 
Tillamook, Oregon 97141 
 

Completed application may also be emailed to candicemerrill@tillamookbaycc.edu 
 

 

mailto:candicemerrill@tillamookbaycc.edu


 Agenda Item 4.c 
March 1, 2021 

 

                              
 

 

2021-2022 Tuition/Fee Changes: First Reading 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
FIRST READING – PROPOSED TUITION AND FEE SCHEDULE FOR 2021-2022 
 
 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION ------------------------------------------------------------------------- VP Williams 
Presented here for first reading is the proposed 2021-2022 Tuition and Fee Schedule. Proposed changes from 
2020-21 are shown below.  The current average tuition rate for Community Colleges in Oregon is $110.33 for 
2020-2021.  In addition, the current average per credit fee rate is $18.33.  At one point, TBCC’s Board goal was 
to be close to the average rate.  Over the last couple years, TBCC has slid well below the average for both tuition 
and fees.  At this point in fiscal planning for the new year, only two community colleges in Oregon are expected to 
not increase tuition or fees for the 2021-2022 academic year. 
 

Tuition or Fee Item Current 2020-2021 Proposed 2021-2022 
Tuition   
In-State Tuition per Credit Hour for the first 
15 credits per term 

$102 $102 $102104 

Out-of-State Tuition per Credit Hour for the 
first 15 credits per term 

$122 $122 $122124 

   
Fees   
Universal Fee (per credit) $14 $14 $1417 
Online Course Fee (per course) $35 $35$35 
Hybrid Course Fee (per course) $15 $15$15 
Adult Basic Skills Instructional Course Fee 
(includes ABE/GED/ESOL courses) 

$15 $15 

Late Payment Fee $75  $75 $7550 
Placement Test for non-TBCC students or 
staff 

$20 $30 

Placement Test Retest $20 $30 
Proctored Testing per test for non-TBCC 
credit students or staff 

$30 $30 

   
Credit for Prior Learning:   
College Level Exam Program (CLEP) 
Administration Fee 

$25 $25 

Challenge Exam  $50 $50   
Department of Public Safety Standards and 
Training (DPSST) Credits 

$75 $75 

   
Official Transcript Fee (per transcript) (one 
free when degree or certificate is mailed) 

$5 $5 

Expedited Transcript Fee (per transcript) $30 $30 
Return Check Fee $25 $25 

 



Agenda Item 4.d 
March 1, 2021 

 

 

College Council Update 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
INFORMATION ONLY 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION …………………………….…… Michele DeGraffenreid, Council Chair 

and Britta Lawrence, Council Vice-Chair 
 
In January, our College Council shifted their governance structure to become more independent. The 
Council still serves as a recommending body to the President, but now instead of the President 
organizing and running the meetings, they have voted on a Chair and Vice-Chair that will now take on 
those tasks. Michele DeGraffenreid, Writing Faculty, was voted in as Chair and Britta Lawrence, 
Development Director, was voted in as Vice-Chair.  They organized and ran the meeting in January 
for the first time. They jumped right in and have initiated more engaged work for the council to work 
on. Both the Chair and Vice-Chair will attend our Board meeting and will present on some of the 
initiatives they have started and how the new organization is working. 
 
 
 
 

 
 



Agenda Item 4.e 
March 1, 2021 

 

 

Revised Board Policies 100 and 101: Second Reading 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
ACTION ITEM 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION ……………..……………………………….…………. President Tomlin 
 
This is the second reading for the changes to these two Board policies. Since the first reading which 
showed a change in title for the two policies to be more representative of the content, along with 
moving section 101.4 to 100.7, a few other edits were found to be needed in Board Policy 100. In 
Section 100.3, a few edits were made to enhance the readability, but none of the changes are 
substantive. These edits are in red on the copies following this page. If the Board is comfortable and in 
agreement with these extra changes to Board Policy 100, we ask the Board to approve the changes to 
both Board Policy 100 and 101. 
 
 
 
 

 
 



BOARD PROCEDURES DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
Article No.: 
Approved: 
Reference: 

100 
April 7, 2008, October 13, 2014, November 14, 2016, November 6, 2017 
ORS 341.287 [2]; ORS 341.290; ORS 192.420; ORS 341.790; ORS 294.336 

  
Agenda Item 4.e.1 
March 1, 2021 
 

 

100.1 - PHILOSOPHY 
 

The Board of Education of Tillamook Bay Community College recognizes that it is 
responsible to all the citizens of the College service area which constitutes Tillamook 
County, regardless of political, social, fraternal, religious or other affiliation. 

 
MISSION 

 
Tillamook Bay Community College creates bridges to opportunity by providing 
quality education that serves the needs of our diverse community. 

 
GOVERNANCE 

 
The Board of Education is primarily concerned with the creation, under existing law, of 
policies for the College, and for the evaluation of the effectiveness of those policies. The 
execution of given policy, the daily decisions made within its framework, and the methods 
used to enforce its provisions, are properly the responsibility of the College professional 
administrative staff. 

 
100.2 - BOARD DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

 
The Board of Education shall be responsible for the general oversight and control of the 
community college. Consistent with any applicable rules of the State Board of Education, 
the Board may: 

 
A. Select and appoint the College President. 

 
B. Select and appoint candidates to vacant Board positions. 

 
C. Confirm the hiring of administrative officers, professional personnel and other 

employees, define their duties, terms and conditions of employment and prescribe 
compensation therefore. 

 
D. Enact policies for the governance of Tillamook Bay Community College, including 

professional personnel and other employees and students therein and review on an 
annual basis. 

 
E. Prescribe the educational program including the establishment of the academic 

requirements for diplomas, certificates and associate degrees including the degree 
guarantee maps for all degrees. 

 
F. Control use of and access to the grounds, buildings, books, equipment and other 

property of the College. 



BOARD PROCEDURES DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES Page 2/6 
Article No.: 
Approved: 
Reference: 

100 
April 7, 2008, October 13, 2014, November 14, 2016, November 6, 2017 
ORS 341.287 [2]; ORS 341.290; ORS 192.420; ORS 341.790; ORS 294.336 

 

 

G. Acquire, receive, hold control of, convey, sell, manage, operate, lease, lease- 
purchase, lend, invest, improve and develop any and all property of whatever nature 
given to or appropriated for the use, support or benefit of any activity under the 
control of the board, according to the terms and conditions of such gift or 
appropriation. 

 
H. Purchase real property upon a contractual basis when the period of time allowed for 

payment under the contract does not exceed 30 years. 
 

I. Establish standards of admission to Tillamook Bay Community College and prescribe 
tuition rates and fees, including fixing different tuition rates for students who reside in 
the county, students who do not reside in the county, but are residents of the state, 
and students who do not reside in the state. 

 
J. Prescribe and expend funds so raised for special programs and services for the 

students and for programs for the cultural and physical development of the students. 
 

K. Provide and disseminate to the public information relating to the program, operation 
and finances of Tillamook Bay Community College. 

 
L. Establish or contract for advisory and consultant services. 

 
M. Take, hold and dispose of mortgages on real and personal property acquired by way 

of gift or arising out of transactions entered into in accordance with the powers, 
duties, and authority of the board and institute, maintain and participate in suits and 
actions and other judicial proceedings in the name of the college for the foreclosure 
of such mortgages. 

 
N. Maintain programs, services and facilities, and, in connection therewith, cooperate 

and enter into agreements with any person or public or private agency. 
 

O. Provide student services consistent with the College’s mission to support student 
achievement of educational goals. 

 
P. Join appropriate associations and pay any required dues therefore from resources of 

the College. 
 

Q. Apply for state and federal funds and accept and enter into any contracts or 
agreements for the receipt of such funds from the State or Federal Government or its 
agencies for educational purposes. 

 
R. Prescribe rules for the use and access to public records of the college that are 

consistent with ORS 192.420. However, the following records shall not be made 



BOARD PROCEDURES DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES Page 3/6 
Article No.: 
Approved: 
Reference: 

100 
April 7, 2008, October 13, 2014, November 14, 2016, November 6, 2017 
ORS 341.287 [2]; ORS 341.290; ORS 192.420; ORS 341.790; ORS 294.336 

 

 

available to public inspection for any purpose without consent of the person who is 
the subject of the record, or upon order of a court of competent jurisdiction: 

 
(a) Student records relating to matters such as grades, conduct, personal and 

academic evaluations, results of psychometric testing, disciplinary actions, if 
any, and other personal matters. 

(b) Employee records relating to matters such as conduct, personal and academic 
evaluations, disciplinary actions, if any, and other personal matters. 

 
A. Enter into contracts for the receipt of cash or property, or both and establish 

annuities; and, commit, appropriate, authorize and budget for the payment of or other 
disposition of general funds to pay, in whole or in part, sums due under an annuity 
agreement, and to provide the necessary funding for reserves or other trust funds. 

 
B. Encourage gifts to the College by faithfully devoting the proceeds of such gifts to the 

college purposes for which intended. 
 

C. Approve the staff to build, furnish, equip, repair, lease, purchase and raze facilities; 
and locate, buy and acquire lands for all college purposes. Financing may be any 
prudent method, including but not limited to loans, contract purchase or lease. 
Leases authorized by this section include lease-purchase agreements where under 
the College may acquire ownership of the leased property at a nominal price. Such 
financing agreements may be for a term of up to 30 years except for lease 
arrangements which may be for a term of up to 50 years. 

 
D. Participate in an educational consortium with public and private institutions that offer 

secondary, upper division and graduate instruction. To engage in such consortiums 
the College may expend money, provide facilities and assign staff to assist those 
institutions offering instruction. 

 
E. Annually, the Board of Education will do a Board Self-Evaluation to review its 

effectiveness as a governing board. 
 

F. Exercise any other power, duty or responsibility necessary to carry out the functions 
under this section or required by law. 

 
 

100.3 - ORGANIZATION OF THE BOARD 
 

The Board derives its authority from ORS, Chapter 341. The Board is subject to the 
provisions of the Constitution of the State of Oregon, applicable state and federal laws, its 
own policies and procedures, and the expressed will of the electorate. Board members 



BOARD PROCEDURES DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES Page 4/6 
Article No.: 
Approved: 
Reference: 

100 
April 7, 2008, October 13, 2014, November 14, 2016, November 6, 2017 
ORS 341.287 [2]; ORS 341.290; ORS 192.420; ORS 341.790; ORS 294.336 

 

 

serve without remuneration, except for actual and necessary expenses incurred by Board 
members in authorized travel for College business, conferences, or professional meetings. 

 
 

The Board consists of seven members positions nominated and elected from zones and 
elected at large within Tillamook County. Elections are held in accordance with the 
provisions of the ORS 341.790. The zones positions and corresponding zones are: 

 
Position 1: Zone 1: Beaver, Carnahan, Cloverdale, Hebo, Neskowin, Union, and Pacific 

City. 
Position 2: Zone 2: Fairview, Netarts, Oceanside, South Prairie, and Westside. 
Position 3: Zone 3: City of Tillamook (Precincts 1-6), Eastside, and Trask. 
Position 4: Zone 4: Bay City, Garibaldi, Kilchis, Maple Leaf, and Foley. 
Position 5: Zone 5: Nehalem, Pine Grove, Rockaway Beach, Wheeler, and Manzanita. 
Position 6: At Large  
Position 7: At Large  

 
Elections are held in accordance with the provisions of the ORS 341.790.  The term of 
office of all Board members shall begin on July 1 following the date of election. Board 
members shall serve until their successor’s term begins. Board members must qualify by 
taking the oath of office before assuming the duties of the office. 

 
The Board shall declare the office of a Board member vacant if it finds any of the following: 

 
A. The incumbent has died or resigned, or 

 
B. The incumbent has been removed, recalled, or the election has been declared void 

by a court of competent jurisdiction, or 
 

C. The incumbent has ceased to be a resident of Tillamook County or the zone they 
were elected to represent, or 

 
D. The incumbent has not discharged the duties of office for two consecutive regular 

monthly meetings unless prevented there from by sickness or other unavoidable 
cause, or unless granted an excuse by the Chairperson of the Board. The 
Chairperson shall report and have entered such excuses in the minutes of the 
meeting for which the excuse was granted. 

 
Vacant positions upon the Board shall be filled by appointment of a qualified voter residing 
in the zone in which the vacancy occurs. A Board member so appointed shall serve until 
the next regular Public Election when a successor shall be elected to serve for the 
remainder of the unexpired term. 

 
100.4 - OFFICERS OF THE COLLEGE BOARD 

 
The Board shall meet and organize at the June meeting by electing a chairperson and vice- 
chairperson from its members for the following academic year. 



BOARD PROCEDURES DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES Page 5/6 
Article No.: 
Approved: 
Reference: 

100 
April 7, 2008, October 13, 2014, November 14, 2016, November 6, 2017 
ORS 341.287 [2]; ORS 341.290; ORS 192.420; ORS 341.790; ORS 294.336 

 

 
 

The President of the College shall be appointed the Clerk of the Board. The Chief Finance 
Officer shall be appointed the Deputy Clerk of the Board, and the – President or support to 
the President shall be named the Board Secretary. 

 
100.5 - DUTIES OF OFFICERS 

 
The duties of Board officers and committees will be as follows: 

A. Chairperson 
1. To preside at all meetings of the Board. 
2. To appoint or provide for the election of all committees. 
3. To call special meetings as required. 
4. To perform such other duties as may be prescribed by law or by action of the 

Board. 
5. To have the same duty to vote on matters before the Board as the other 

members. 
B. Vice-chairperson 

The Vice-chairperson shall uphold the duties of the Chairperson in her/his absence. 
C. President of the College as Clerk of the Board 

1. The President is appointed by the Board as its Executive and shall implement 
the policies of the Board regarding the operation of the College. 

D. Deputy Clerk 
1. The Deputy Clerk will function as Clerk in the absence of the Clerk. The 

Deputy Clerk may also be a co-signer for payment of College bills by check. 
E. Secretary for the Board 

The major duties and responsibilities of the Secretary for the Board will be: 
1. To notify members of the Board of all regular and special meetings. 
2. To attend all Board meetings. 
3. To record the minutes of the meetings of the Board and transmit a copy of the 

minutes of the previous meeting to each member of the Board before each 
ensuing meeting. 

4. To have charge of all records, proceedings and documents of the Board. 
F. Committees 

1. The Chairperson shall appoint no more than three members to committees 
designated for a specific purpose. Committees shall not perform any of the 
Board's functions. 

G. Budget Committee 
1. As directed by ORS 294.336, the Budget Committee shall consist of seven 

College Board members and seven members appointed by the Board for three 
year terms. Appointees must be qualified electors of Tillamook County. 



BOARD PROCEDURES DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES Page 6/6 
Article No.: 
Approved: 
Reference: 

100 
April 7, 2008, October 13, 2014, November 14, 2016, November 6, 2017 
ORS 341.287 [2]; ORS 341.290; ORS 192.420; ORS 341.790; ORS 294.336 

 

 
 

100.6 AUTHORITY OF MEMBERS 

Any duty imposed upon the Board as a body shall be performed at a regular or special 
meeting and shall be made a matter of record. The consent to any particular measure 
obtained from individual Board members when the Board is not in session shall not be an 
act of the Board and shall not be binding upon the College. 

 
 

100.7 EMPLOYMENT RIGHTS OF THE BOARD 

A. Pursuant to ORS 341.290, the Board retains and reserves to itself all rights, powers, 
authority, duties, and responsibilities conferred upon or vested in it by law, including 
but not limited to the right to employ administrative officers, professional personnel and 
other employees, define their duties, terms, and conditions of employment and 
prescribe compensation therefore. 

B. The Board of Education reserves the right to delegate its authority granted through 
ORS 641.290 to the College President where appropriate. 

 
 (Section 100.7 was moved from Policy 101.4) 



BOARD PROCEDURES MEETING PROCEDURES Agenda Item 4.e.2 
March 1, 2021 Article No.: 

Approved: 
Reference: 

101 
April 7, 2008 
ORS 341.287 [2]; ORS 341.290; ORS 192.420; ORS 341.790; ORS 294.336 

 

 

101.1 CONDUCTING BOARD BUSINESS 
 

A. Annual Organizations Meeting. The first Board of Education meeting of the fiscal year 
will serve as the annual organizational meeting. 

B. Regular Board Meetings. Regular Board meetings are held monthly. Other meetings are 
held as needed. The date and location of a regular meeting may be changed by the 
action of the Board either by letter or by distribution of the minutes carrying a record of 
the change. In case of a change in date or location of a regular meeting, the Clerk shall 
take appropriate steps to inform the public of the change in advance of the meeting. 

C. Executive Sessions. Executive sessions shall be held in compliance with Oregon 
Revised Statutes. Executive sessions, in accordance with Oregon Revised Statutes, are 
not open to the public. 

D. Rules of Order. Robert’s Rules of Order shall be used as a guide in conducting Board 
Meetings, except as otherwise noted in Board policy. 

E. Public Participation in Board Meetings. All regular meetings of the Board are open to the 
public. The Board encourages and welcomes participation in its regular Board meetings 
and provides for public discussion of agenda items during the meeting under the agenda 
item, “Invitation of Public Comment.” The Board, however, has no obligation to act upon 
any public request or proposal unless such request or proposal is submitted in writing to 
the College President at least eight days before the meeting, and the Chairperson of the 
Board places it on the agenda. Public discussion time may be limited by the Chairperson 
of the Board. 

F. Minutes of Board Meetings. A record of all transactions of the Board will be set forth in 
the official minutes. The minutes will record the name of the member making a motion, 
the name of the person seconding it, and the vote of each Board member. 

G. Voting. Voting at Board meetings will be by voice vote. A member voting against a 
proposition may state the reasons and have them recorded in the minutes if so 
requested at the time of voting. Any member may also request the “yeas” and “nays” to 
be taken and entered in the minutes on any question before the Board. Abstention is not 
desirable and if insisted upon will be recorded as a “nay” vote. 

H. Quorum. Four members of the Board will constitute a quorum for the transaction of 
Board business. At least four members of the Board must approve a motion for it to pass. 

I. Meeting Agenda. The agenda for Board meetings will be prepared by the College 
President. As a general rule, official action will not be taken on items not listed on the 
agenda. 

J. Resource Persons at Board Meetings. The Board will recognize resource persons from 
various sections of the college community (instruction, administrative, and business 
office). Such resource persons will be seated at a resource table at regular Board 
meetings for the purpose of providing the Board information pertaining to the viewpoints 
of their respective sections regarding new or revised Board policy. All such 
representatives serve in an advisory capacity, at the pleasure of the Board, and with no 
right to vote on matters before the Board. 

K. Board Member Travel Policy. All members of the College Board of Education are 
authorized to attend and participate in meetings and conferences of organizations of 
which the College is a member. Travel arrangements for such meetings shall be 



BOARD PROCEDURES MEETING PROCEDURES Agenda Item 4.e.2 
March 1, 2021 Article No.: 

Approved: 
Reference: 

101 
April 7, 2008 
ORS 341.287 [2]; ORS 341.290; ORS 192.420; ORS 341.790; ORS 294.336 

 

 

coordinated by the Secretary of the Board. Board members may be reimbursed for 
authorized college travel at approved reimbursement rates. 

L. Special Meeting. When a group, organization, or association wishes to meet with the 
Board and/or representatives of the Board, the initiating organization is required to 
prepare the agenda with appropriate supporting material. This agenda and supporting 
material must be forwarded to the President’s Office not less than five (5) days prior to 
the scheduled meeting for dissemination to Board members in advance of the special 
meeting. This responsibility includes the Board should they initiate the meeting. All 
special meetings shall be conducted in compliance with Oregon’s Public Meetings Law. 
The Board reserves the right to deviate from this policy when in their judgement 
conditions warrant such action. 

 
101.2 PLACE OF MEETINGS 

All meetings of the Board will be held at the main campus unless previously announced that 
another location has been selected. In case any meeting is held at a different place, the 
secretary will notify each member of the change. 

 
 

101.3 MEETINGS OPEN TO THE PUBLIC 
 

A. All meetings of the Board will be open to the public except for executive sessions. The 
Board may exclude from any such public or private meeting, during the examination of a 
witness, any or all other witnesses in the matter being investigated by the legislative 
body. 

B. The order of business of any official meeting will include an opportunity for the public to 
address the Board on any item of business which is included in the agenda. The Board, 
however, does not obligate itself to act upon request or proposal immediately. In order to 
place an item on the agenda, it must be submitted to the President in writing at least five 
(5) working days before the meeting. 
 

101.4 EMPLOYMENT RIGHTS OF THE BOARD 

A. Pursuant to ORS 341.290, the Board retains and reserves to itself all rights, 
powers, authority, duties, and responsibilities conferred upon or vested in it by 
law, including but not limited to the right to employ administrative officers, 
professional personnel and other employees, define their duties, terms, and 
conditions of employment and prescribe compensation therefore. 

B. The Board of Education reserves the right to delegate its authority granted 
through ORS 641.290 to the College President where appropriate. 

 
(This section was moved to Policy 100.7) 

 
 
 
 



Agenda Item 4.f 
March 1, 2021 

 

 

Academic Calendar Approval 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
ACTION ITEM 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION ……………..……………………………………….…………..VP Rivenes 
 
A valuable lesson we have learned via COVID-19 is that more time for registration is important to us. 
For that reason we are bringing back changes to the academic calendar for 2021-2022 for your 
approval. The primary change is that winter term has been pushed off one week, which results in 
Spring Break, Spring term, graduation, and Summer term being pushed back one week. Please see 
the attached calendar for your approval. 
 
 
 
 

 
 



Su M Tu W Th F Sa Su M Tu W Th F Sa
1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 5 6 7 8 9 10 11
13 14 15 16 17 18 19 12 13 14 15 16 17 18
20 21 22 23 24 25 26 Registration Opens 5/24/2021 19 20 21 22 23 24 25
27 28 29 30 Commencement 6/18/2021 26 27 28 29 30 31

Last Day to Register 6/27/2021
Term Begins 6/28/2021
Last Day to Drop/ Payment Due 7/1/2021

Su M Tu W Th F Sa HOLIDAY 7/5/2021 Su M Tu W Th F Sa
1 2 3 College Closed /2, 7/9, 7/16, 7/23, 7/30, 8/6, 8/13, 8/20, 8/27 1

4 5 6 7 8 9 10 Fall Reg Opens 8/16/2021 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
11 12 13 14 15 16 17 10 Week Finals 8/30/21-9/3/21 9 10 11 12 13 14 15
18 19 20 21 22 23 24 10 Week End Date 9/4/2021 16 17 18 19 20 21 22
25 26 27 28 29 30 31 Labor Day 9/6/2021 23 24 25 26 27 28 29

Grades & RFI Due 9/7/2021 30 31
Faculty Inservice 9/13-17/21
Staff Inservice 9/13-17/21

Su M Tu W Th F Sa Last Day to Register 9/19/2021 Su M Tu W Th F Sa
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 Term Begins 9/20/2021 1 2 3 4 5
8 9 10 11 12 13 14 Last Day to Drop/ Payment Due 9/24/2021 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

15 16 17 18 19 20 21 Veteran's Day 11/11/2021 13 14 15 16 17 18 19
22 23 24 25 26 27 28 Last Day to Withdraw 11/12/2021 20 21 22 23 24 25 26
29 30 31 Registration Opens 11/22/2021 27 28

Thanksgiving Holiday 11/25-26/21
Finals Week 11/29/21-12/3/21
Term Ends 12/4/2021

Su M Tu W Th F Sa Grades 12/6/2021 Su M Tu W Th F Sa
1 2 3 4 College Closed 12/20-24/21 1 2 3 4 5

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 College Closed 12/31/2021 6 7 8 9 10 11 12
12 13 14 15 16 17 18 Last Day to Register 1/9/2022 13 14 15 16 17 18 19
19 20 21 22 23 24 25 Term Begins 1/10/2022 20 21 22 23 24 25 26
26 27 28 29 30 Last Day to Drop/ Payment Due 1/14/2022 27 28 29 30 31

MLK Holiday 1/17/2022
Last Day to Withdraw 3/4/2022
Registration Opens 2/28/2022

Su M Tu W Th F Sa Finals Week 3/21-25/22 Su M Tu W Th F Sa
1 2 Term Ends 3/26/2022 1 2

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 Grades & RFI Due 3/28/2022 3 4 5 6 7 8 9
10 11 12 13 14 15 16 Spring Break 3/28-4/1/22 10 11 12 13 14 15 16
17 18 19 20 21 22 23 Last Day to Register 4/3/2022 17 18 19 20 21 22 23
24 25 26 27 28 29 30 Term Begins 4/4/2022 24 25 26 27 28 29 30
31 Last Day to Drop/ Payment Due 4/8/2022

Last Day to Withdraw 5/27/2022
Memorial Day 5/30/2022

Su M Tu W Th F Sa Finals Week 6/13-17/22 Su M Tu W Th F Sa
1 2 3 4 5 6 End of Term 6/18/2022 1 2 3 4 5 6 7

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 Commencement 6/17/2022 8 9 10 11 12 13 14
14 15 16 17 18 19 20 Grades Due 6/20/2022 15 16 17 18 19 20 21
21 22 23 24 25 26 27 student action staff/faculty action 22 23 24 25 26 27 28
28 29 30 holidays non contract days 29 30 31

2021-2022
June '21

Yearly Academic Calendar
December '21

May '22

April '22

November '21

October '21

September '21 March '22

August '21 February '22

July '21 January '22

Tillamook Bay Community College

Agenda Item 4.f.1 
March 1, 2021



Agenda Item 5 
March 1, 2021 

 

 

Information Only Items 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
INFORMATION ONLY 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION -----------------------------------------------------------------------  Chair Gervasi 
 
 

 



Agenda Item 5.a 
March 1, 2021 

 
 

Board Appreciation 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
INFORMATION ONLY 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION ……………………………………………………………President Tomlin 
 
In K-12, School Board Appreciation Month is in January. We missed that month this year, but wanted 
to wait until we had our new logo before including this in a Board meeting. So now March will become 
our official Board Appreciation Month for TBCC! 
 
I brag a lot about this Board to my colleagues at other colleges across the state. This is an amazing 
Board full of engaged individuals that care deeply for TBCC and the work we do for our students. I 
cannot thank you all enough for the passion you exhibit for our special college and the important work 
you do to oversee and approve our budget and Board policies. We are very fortunate to have each 
and every one of you on our Board and the work you do for the college is greatly appreciated. As a 
token of that appreciation, we have a signed letter from our Leadership Team and a TBCC Water 
Bottle with our new logo! Those items will be sent to you or you can pick them up at the College. 
Thank you from all of us at TBCC! 
 
 
 
 

 
 



Agenda Item 5.b 
March 1, 2021 

 

 

Career to Career and First Class Scholar Notes 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
INFORMATION ONLY 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION ……………………………………….……………………… VP Hanson 
 
VP Hanson will present the notes of appreciation from our Career to Career and First Class Scholar 
recipients.  
 
 
 
 

 
 



Agenda Item 5.c 
March 1, 2021 

 
 

 

Program Review: General Education and Transfer Degrees 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
INFORMATION ONLY 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION …………………………………...……………………………. VP Rivenes 
 
This month’s program review is the General Education program at TBCC. This is our largest program 
and most robust Program Review. It takes a look at all General Education programs including the 
Associate of Arts Oregon Transfer (AAOT), the Associate of Arts (AA) and the Associate of General 
Studies (AGS). These degrees are made up of classes which include, Reading, Writing, Math, 
Science, Arts & Letters, Social Science and Communication. This work is the primary focus of 70% of 
our full time faculty and a large percentage of our adjuncts as well. As a result of this work faculty 
have set ambitious goals that will improve student learning across campus. Attached please find the 
PowerPoint presentation (highlights) and the entire Program Review for your reading. 
 
 
 
 

 
 



General Education  
Tillamook Bay Community College

Agenda Item 5.c.1 
March 1, 2021



What is General Education?

Knowledge Check:

• Degrees

• Program Learning Outcomes

• In all degrees and certificates?

• What kind of classes?

• FTE

Agenda Item 5.c.1 
March 1, 2021



Findings of Interest…
• Women outperform men in general, but less so in COMM 

and Arts/Letters
• LatinX students outperform except in COMM, RDWR and 

Science
• We are comparable to our peers in Gen Ed completion 

results
• Far less men in AAOT, AS and AGS, but men do retain at 

higher rates in AAOT
• White students retain and complete more than other 

races, except in AGS where Latinx students outperform 
other races significantly

• Success rates are similar between face to face and online 
classes

• Pass rates for all classes average around 88.5%

Agenda Item 5.c.1 
March 1, 2021



Successes

Development of SLO Process

Improving Math and A/L scores

Placement & Developmental Ed

Agenda Item 5.c.1 
March 1, 2021



Areas for Improvement

Increasing RDWR , WR, COMM scores for all students

Retention of all students from Year 1 to Year 2

Increasing enrollment (particularly men)

Agenda Item 5.c.1 
March 1, 2021



Next steps…
• Goal Setting (Fall 2020)
• Co-requisites
• Guided Pathways- Learning Communities
• Writing across the curriculum
• Map adjustments
• Standard exams in math
• Increased tutoring
• Budget

• Science
• Writing/Comm/AL
• Microscopes

Agenda Item 5.c.1 
March 1, 2021



Knowledge Check
No peeking!

Agenda Item 5.c.1 
March 1, 2021



1 

Three-Year Instructional Program Review Template  
Tentative Due Date: May 30 of the Academic Year Assigned 

Program Name (Degrees and Certificates offered within 
Program):  

1. General Education
a. AAOT: Associate of Arts Oregon Transfer
b. AS: Associate of Science
c. AGS: Associate of General Studies

2. The Program Learning Outcomes examined,
common to all of these degrees, include;

a. Arts and Letters
b. Social Science
c. Math
d. Writing
e. Information Literacy
f. Speech/Oral
g. Science/Computer Science

Statement of Collaboration 

The program faculty listed below collaborated in an open and forthright dialogue to 
prepare this Program Review. Statements included herein accurately reflect the 
conclusions and opinions of the program faculty.  

Participants in the review: 

Printed Name Signature Date 
Bob Pietruszka 
Sydney Elliott 
John Sandusky 
Michele DeGraffenreid 
Chris Carlson 
Geza Laszlo 

Agenda Item 5.c.2 
March 1, 2021



2 
 

 
Authorization: 
 
After the document is complete, it must be signed by the Department Faculty and Chief 
Academic Officer prior to submission to the President.  
  
__________________________________         
Signature of Chief Academic Officer    Date 
  
1.0 Mission and Goals  

 

1.1 Briefly describe the relationship of your program to the college’s Mission, Vision, 

and Core Themes.  
 
TBCC offers a variety of certificates and degrees that can help lead to living wage 
jobs and advancement in a variety of fields. Each degree and/or certificate has a 
recognizable core of general education. General education helps move the mission 
of the college forward through the commitment of lifelong learning and development 
of educated citizens and through leading toward career and educational 
advancement. The purpose of this program review is twofold. First, is to evaluate, 
set goals and improve our General Education programs which consist of the 
Associate of Science (AS), Associate of Arts Oregon Transfer (AAOT) and the 
Associate of General Studies (AGS). Second, it is to assess, set goals, and improve 
upon our general education program outcomes. 
 
The AAOT, AGS and AS degrees are unique in that their learning outcomes, at the 
program level, are the system-wide general education outcomes set by the state 
(Arts and Letters, Cultural Literacy, Mathematics, Science/Computer Science, Social 
Science, Speech/Oral Communication, Writing and Information Literacy). Their 
institutional learning outcomes are the same as all other programs at TBCC (Lifelong 
Learning and Professional Competence, Communication, Problem Solving and 
Cultural Awareness). While we have limited control over revising these outcomes at 
the current time, we do have the ability and responsibility to measure, review, and 
improve student performance on these outcomes and set programmatic goals. 
 
Each of these three degrees, though they have the same program learning 
outcomes, are unique. Specifically; 
1. The AAOT is an opportunity for students to complete all lower division degree 

requirements for any Oregon public baccalaureate degree program and 
seamlessly transfer with junior status in general education. 

2. The AS is also designed to provide students the foundation for transfer, but it 
does not guarantee that students will have met all of the lower division degree 
requirements of any Oregon public baccalaureate degree program. However, it 

Agenda Item 5.c.2 
March 1, 2021



3 
 

does allow for more degree flexibility which is valuable to students who do not 
elect to transfer or elect to transfer to schools other than an Oregon public 
institution of higher learning. AS degrees are aligned with universities and 
students can transfer with junior level in the aligned major. 

3. The AGS is the most flexible degree offered at TBCC, but it also does not 
guarantee that students will have met all of the lower division degree 
requirements (general education or of an aligned major) of any Oregon public 
baccalaureate degree program. It is useful for aligning with out-of-state 
institutions or uncommon majors/programs. 

4. The state is currently developing Associate of Arts Transfer programs (AA-T) and 
that will be added here during the next program review. We do not currently have 
these programs and will not until 7/1/20. 

 
College Mission & Vision  
 
Mission: Tillamook Bay Community College creates bridges to opportunity by providing 
quality education that serves our diverse community. 
 
Vision: Tillamook Bay Community College is a local leader in educational excellence 
and innovation, community advancement and economic success. 
 
Core Themes  

  
1. Educational Excellence: Students are provided with the opportunity to succeed in 

an equitable, inclusive and supportive environment that enhances individual and 
professional growth, through academic, personal and professional development.  

2. Economic Success: The College contributes to the economic growth and 
development of students, community residents, and the entire region, while also 
practicing good stewardship of college resources. 

3. Leadership, Partnership and Community Engagement: The college and its 
students, staff and faculty serve as educational and community leaders through 
professional development, skill building, or partnership with local business and 
school districts, post-secondary institutions, the TBCC Foundation, and 
governmental and social services.  

 
The Core Themes and Institutional Learning Outcomes relate to each other as follows; 
MISSION: Tillamook 

Bay Community 

College creates 

bridges to opportunity 

by providing quality 

education that serves 

the needs of our 

diverse community.  

Core Theme  Values  Institutional Learning Outcomes (ILO)  

Agenda Item 5.c.2 
March 1, 2021



4 
 

bridges to opportunity  Economic 

Success  

Student Success  

Personal & 

Friendly 

Environment  

Lifelong Learning & Professional 

Competence: Students will engage in 

and take responsibility for intentional 

learning, seeks new knowledge and 

skills to guide their continuous and 

independent development and adapt to 

new situations.  

providing quality 

education  
Educational 

Excellence  

Student Success   

Academic 

Excellence  

Personal & 

Friendly 

Environment  

  

Communication Skills: Students will 

effectively communicate, both orally 

and in writing, thoughts in a clear, well-

organized manner to persuade, inform 

and/or convey ideas.  

  

Problem Solving Skills: Students will 

critically analyze and solve problems, 

differentiating facts from opinions, by 

using informed judgement based on 

evidence, sound reasoning, and/or 

creativity in a variety of situations and 

areas of study.  

serves the needs of our 

diverse community  
Leadership, 

Partnership 

and 

Community 

Engagement  

Resourceful 

Teamwork  

Personal & 

Friendly 

Environment  

  

Cultural Awareness: Students will 

demonstrate respect, honesty, fairness 

and ethical principles by understanding 

and appreciating differences in cultures 

and behaviors.  

 
 

Program Description 
 

AAOT AS AGS 
The Associate of Arts Oregon 
Transfer degree is an opportunity for 
students to complete the lower 
division degree requirements of 
baccalaureate degrees at TBCC. Any 
students having the AAOT degree 
recognized on their official college 
transcript will have met the lower 
division general education degree 
requirements of baccalaureate degree 
programs at Oregon public 
universities. Students transferring 
under this agreement will have junior 
status for registration purposes. 
Course, class standing, or GPA 
requirements for specific majors are 
not necessarily satisfied by the 
AAOT degree. All courses should be 

The Associate of Science degree is 
designed for students planning to 
transfer credits to a baccalaureate 
degree program at a four-year 
institution within Oregon public 
universities. It allows for more 
freedom in course section that the 
AAOT/ASOT, but does not 
guarantee that students will be 
accepted as having completed all 
lower division comprehensive and 
general education requirements for a 
baccalaureate degree. 

The Associate of General Studies is 
designed for students wishing to 
acquire a broad education, rather 
than pursuing a specific college 
major or career and technical 
program. College work may include 
courses selected from a variety of 
career and technical education and 
college transfer courses. Because of 
the flexibility of this degree, it may 
not fulfill requirements for transfer 
to four year institutions. Students are 
responsible for checking with the 
college of their choice if 
transferability is desired. 

Agenda Item 5.c.2 
March 1, 2021



5 
 

aligned with the students intended 
program of study and the degree 
requirements of the baccalaureate 
institution to which the student plans 
to transfer. A student is encouraged 
to work with a TBCC advisor when 
planning and selecting courses.   

 Complete all courses with a 
minimum grade of "C" or 
"Pass" or better. Students must 
have a cumulative GPA of 2.0 at 
the time the AAOT is awarded.  

 All courses must be a minimum 
of three credits (except for 
Health/Wellness/Fitness 
courses, which may be any 
number of credits).  

 Courses may not be double 
counted within General 
Education (e.g. Oral 
Communication and Arts and 
Letters)  

 General Education courses must 
include;  

 Writing (8CR): WR 121 and 
either WR 122 or WR 227  

 Oral Communication 
(3CR+): COMM 111 or 
COMM 112  

 Math (4CR+): MTH 105 or 
higher  

 Health/Wellness/Fitness 
(3CR): HE295, HE 242, 
HE 250, HE 254, PE 295, 
PE 142, PE 182  

 Information Literacy: 
embedded within WR 
courses  

 Arts & Letters/Humanities: 
9-12 credits including three 
courses from at least two 
different disciplines 
including (but not limited 
to) ART, COMM, ENG, 
MUS, REL, PHL or 
Foreign Language  

 Social Science: 12-15 
credits, including four 
courses from two or more 
disciplines including (but 
not limited to) PSY, SOC, 
PS, HST, ECON  

 Science/Math/Computer 
Science: 15-20 credits 
including at least four 
courses from at least two 

 Complete all courses with a 
minimum grade of "C" or 
"Pass" or better. Students must 
have a cumulative GPA of 2.0 at 
the time the AS is awarded.  

 Courses may not be double 
counted within General 
Education (e.g. Oral 
Communication and Arts and 
Letters)  

 General Education courses must 
include;  

 Writing (8CR): WR 121 and 
either WR 122 or WR 227  

 Oral Communication 
(3CR+): COMM 111 or 
COMM 112  

 Math (4CR+): MTH 105 or 
higher  

 Health/PE: HE250 + 1 CR 
in PE or HE/PE295 (max 
3 CR): HE295, HE 242, 
HE 250, HE 254, PE 295, 
PE 142, PE 182  

 Information Literacy: 
embedded within WR 
courses  

 Arts & Letters/Humanities: 
two courses (6 credits) for 
AS degrees (e.g. ART, 
COMM, ENG, MUS, REL, 
PHL or Foreign Language)  

 Social Science: two courses 
(6 credits) for AS degrees 
(e.g. PSY, SOC, PS, HST, 
or ECON)  

 Science/Math/Computer 
Science: 7 credits for AS 
degrees with at least one lab 
science (e.g. MTH, CS, BI, 
G, GS, GEO, CHEM, 
PHY).  

 A Maximum of 12 credits can 
be Career Technical Education 
courses  

 A Maximum of 9 credits can be 
from courses labeled 199/299  

 A Maximum of 24 credits can 
be ESOL  

 Complete all courses with a 
minimum grade of "D" or 
"Pass" or better. Students must 
have a cumulative GPA of 2.0 at 
the time the AGS is awarded.  

 General Education courses must 
include;  

 Writing (8CR): WR 121 and 
either WR 122 or WR 227  

 Oral Communication 
(3CR+): COMM 111 or 
COMM 112  

 Math (4CR+): MTH 105 or 
higher  

 Health/Wellness/Fitness: 
maximum of 6 credits  

 Information Literacy: 
embedded within WR 
courses  

 Arts & Letters/Humanities: 
6 credits (e.g. ART, 
COMM, ENG, MUS, REL, 
PHL or Foreign Language)  

 Social Science: 6 credits 
(e.g. PSY, SOC, PS, HST, 
or ECON)  

 Science/Math/Computer 
Science: 6 credits (e.g. 
MTH, CS, BI, G, GS, 
GEO, CHEM, PHY)   

 A Maximum of 9 credits can be 
from courses labeled 199/299  

 A Maximum of 24 credits can be 
ESOL  

 A Maximum of 24 credits can be 
"P" grades  

 A Maximum of 21 credits can be 
from Credit for Prior Learning 
(CPL)  

 Electives must be used to bring 
the program of study up to a 
minimum of 90 credits, and a 
maximum of 108  

 30 credits are required to meet 
residency at TBCC, 24 of which 
must apply to the degree for 
which the student is being 
awarded.  

 

Agenda Item 5.c.2 
March 1, 2021



6 
 

disciplines including (but 
not limited to) MTH, CS, 
BI, G, GS, GEO, CHEM, 
PHY and must include at 
least three lab courses in 
biological and/or physical 
science  

 Cultural Literacy: at least 
one course from the 
statewide cultural literacy 
list, this course can be one 
of the other general 
education requirements 
listed above  

 A Maximum of 12 credits can 
be Career Technical Education 
courses  

 A Maximum of 9 credits can be 
from courses labeled 199/299  

 A Maximum of 24 credits can 
be ESOL  

 A Maximum of 24 credits can 
be "P" grades  

 A Maximum of 21 credits can 
be from Credit for Prior 
Learning (CPL)  

 Electives must be used to bring 
the program of study up to a 
minimum of 90 credits, and a 
maximum of 108  

 30 credits are required to meet 
residency at TBCC, 24 of which 
must apply to the degree for 
which the student is being 
awarded  

 

 A Maximum of 24 credits can 
be "P" grades  

 A Maximum of 21 credits can 
be from Credit for Prior 
Learning (CPL)  

 Electives must be used to bring 
the program of study up to a 
minimum of 90 credits, and a 
maximum of 108  

 30 credits are required to meet 
residency at TBCC, 24 of which 
must apply to the degree for 
which the student is being 
awarded  

 

 
The General Education programs outcomes listed above are defined as; 
 

Program Learning Outcomes 
(Statewide) 

Institutional Learning Outcomes 

ARTS & LETTERS: Interpret and engage in the Arts & 

Letters, making use of the creative process to enrich the 

quality of life; and Critically analyze values and ethics 

within a range of human experience and expression to 

engage more fully in local and global issues.  

 

MATHEMATICS: Use appropriate mathematics to 

solve problems; and Recognize which mathematical 

concepts are applicable to a scenario, apply appropriate 

mathematics and technology in its analysis, and then 

accurately interpret, validate, and communicate the 

results. 

 

Cultural Awareness: Students will demonstrate respect, 

honesty, fairness, and ethical principles by understanding 

and appreciating differences in cultures and behaviors. 

 

Problem Solving Skills: Students will critically analyze 

and solve problems, differentiating facts from opinions, 

by using informed judgment based on evidence, sound 

reasoning, and/or creativity in a variety of situations and 

areas of study. 

 

Lifelong Learning and Professional Competence: 

Students will engage in and take responsibility for 

intentional learning, seek new knowledge and skills to 

Agenda Item 5.c.2 
March 1, 2021



7 
 

SCIENCE/COMP SCIENCE: Gather, comprehend, 

and communicate scientific and technical information in 

order to explore ideas, models, and solutions and 

generate further questions; Apply scientific and technical 

modes of inquiry, individually, and collaboratively, to 

critically evaluate existing or alternative explanations, 

solve problems, and make evidence-based decisions in an 

ethical manner; and Assess the strengths and weaknesses 

of scientific studies and critically examine the influence of 

scientific and technical knowledge on human society and 

the environment. 

 

SOCIAL SCIENCE: Apply analytical skills to social 

phenomena in order to understand human behavior; and 

Apply knowledge and experience to foster personal 

growth and better appreciate the diverse social world in 

which we live 

 

SPEECH/ORAL: Engage in ethical communication 

processes that accomplish goals; Respond to the needs of 

diverse audiences and contexts; and 

Build and manage relationships. 

 

WRITING: Read actively, think critically and write 

purposefully and capable for academic and, in some 

cases, professional audiences; Locate, evaluate, and 

ethically utilize information to communicate effectively; 

and Demonstrate appropriate reasoning in response to 

complex issues. 

 

INFORMATIONAL LITERACY: (embedded in 

writing courses) Formulate a problem statement; 

Determine nature and extent of the information needed 

to address the problem; Access relevant information he 

use of information effectively and efficiently; Evaluate 

information and its source critically; Understand many of 

the economic, legal and social issues surrounding the use 

of information 

 

guide their continuous and independent development, 

and adapt to new situations. 

 

Communication Skills: Students will effectively 

communicate, both orally and in writing, thoughts in a 

clear, well-organized manner to persuade, inform and/or 

convey ideas. 

 

   
 
2.0 Program Data and Trends Analysis  
  
2.1 For each data point listed below, summarize the trend. (Attach three year 

longitudinal data to appendix.)  
 

 
  

Data Point 
Table   

Trend (2016-2018) 
Highest Year  

Agenda Item 5.c.2 
March 1, 2021



8 
 

Number 
Program 
Majors  

2.1.b AAOT: 38 (2017), 41 (2018), 26 (2019) 

*AAOT students are more likely to be FT 

AS:15 (2017), 28 (2018), 18 (2019) 

AGS: 72 (2017), 61 (2018), 39 (2019) 

*AGS students more likely to be PT 

*Enrollment declining this past year in these 
degrees. Slight increase in other areas (e.g. CTE, 
ABS/GED, non-credit). 

AAOT (2018), 

AS (2018) 

AGS (2018) 

Total FTE  2.1.c Total: 304.26 (3 year FTE Total) 

AAOT: 35.29 (2017), 52.13 (2018), 41.6 (2019) 

AS:10.47 (2017), 24.74 (2018), 15.77 (2019) 

AGS: 33.46 (2017), 46.13 (2018), 44.67 (2019) 

 

3 year percentage ranged from: 

Art/Hum: 25-34 FTE, Grand Total: 88.5 

Comm: 11-14 FTE, Grand Total: 38.7 

RD/WR: 28-32 FTE, Grand Total: 90.42 
*2 FT Fac for 217.62 3 YR FTE, Ave 70-75 

*Large % is dual credit 

 

Science: 35-53 FTE, Grand Total: 134 
*1 FT Fac for 134 3 YR FTE, Ave 44 

 

Soc Sc: 30-40 FTE, Grand Total: 103 

CG: 8-10 FTE, Grand Total: 28.8 
*1 FT Fac for 132 3 YR FTE, Ave 44  

 

Math: 45-55 FTE, Grand Total: 147 
2 FT Fac for 147 3 YR FTE, Ave 49 

 

2018 (all) 

Agenda Item 5.c.2 
March 1, 2021



9 
 

Number 
Sections 
Offered  

2.1.d Art/Hum: 20-29, Grand Total: 75 

Comm: 10-12, Grand Total: 33 

RD/WR: 24-30, Grand Total: 79 

Math: 35-41, Grand Total: 115 

Science: 27-30, Grand Total: 85 

Soc Sc: 23-31, Grand Total: 80 

CG: 8-14, Grand Total: 32 

 

Art/ Hum: 2017 

CG: 2019 

Comm: 2019 

Math: 2019 

RD/WR: 2017 

Science: 2019 

Soc Sc: 2019 

FTEF  2.1.e TYPE         17          18           19 

Art/Hum     .714        .606        .524 

CG             .173        .211        .217 

Comm        .235        .282        .288 

Math           1.137     .952        .972 

RD/WR        .59        .675        .619 

Science       .745       1.107     .936 

Soc Sci       .843        .630       .676 

 

Total            4.432       4.463      4.232 
*Current largest need for Science, but does not 

include Healthcare 

See previous 
box 

Fill Rate  2.1.f TYPE         17          18           19 

Art/Hum     49%        53.3%    58.7% 

CG             56%        56.8%    56.4% 

Comm        47.7%     51.2%    47.1% 

Math           58.4%     54.6%    48.8% 

RD/WR       43.4%     57.5%    57.4% 

Science       37.6%     54.7%    45.7% 

Soc Sci       64.4%      58.7%    47.7% 

 

Total            51%       55.4%      51% 

Notes: 

 Numbers 
similar 
between 
online 
and face 
to face 

 New 
offerings 
have 
impacted 
fill rate 
slightly 

Agenda Item 5.c.2 
March 1, 2021



10 
 

% Students 
Persisting 
from Fall to 
Fall  

2.1.h AAOT: 53.25% 

     2017: 62.07% 

     2018: 50% 

     2019: 45.45% 

AS: 39.02% 

     2017: 33.33% 

     2018: 40% 

     2019:41.67% 

AGS: 35.63% 

     2017: 32.43% 

     2018: 35.48% 

     2019: 42.11% 

See previous 
box 

 

Notes:  

 We are 
losing 
students 
from 
Year 1  
to Year 2 

% Students 
Persisting 
from Term 
1 to Term 2  

2.1.i AAOT: 92.21% 

     2017: 89.66% 

     2018: 88.46% 

     2019: 100% 

AS: 90.24% 

     2017: 77.78% 

     2018: 90% 

     2019:100% 

AGS: 77.01% 

     2017: 75.68% 

     2018: 64.52% 
     2019: 100% 

See previous 
box 

Average 
Successful 
Completion 
Rate 

2.1.j AAOT: 24% FT, 6% PT 

AS: 33% FT, 0% PT 

AGS: 5% FT, 0% PT 
* White students slightly more likely to complete in 2 

years (4%) 

Art/ Hum: 2018 

CG: 2017 

Comm: 2019 

Math: 2017 

Agenda Item 5.c.2 
March 1, 2021



11 
 

 

2.3% transfer to another CC 

28.3% transfer to university 

 

Art/Hum: 37-90, Grand Total: 88.45% 

CG: 71-78, Grand Total: 75.68% 

Comm: 83-89, Grand Total: 87.26% 

Math: 72-75, Grand Total: 74.48% 

RD/WR: 71-75, Grand Total: 73.37% 

Science: 71-80, Grand Total: 76.65% 

Soc Sc: 82-89, Grand Total: 86.86% 

Note:  
 Women out perform men in general, less so 

in Comm and Arts/Letters 

 LatinX student outperform except in Comm 

(exception 2019), RDWR and Science. 

 Part time success rates are abysmal 

RD/WR: 2017 

Science: 2018 

Soc Sc: 2017 

  
 
2.2 Program Peer Comparison 
  
How does your program compare with peers?  
 
Program Name: Gen Ed Programs 

   
  

College (rural, fringe, 
small) 

Total 
Enrollment  

2 YR 
Cohort 
comp. 

6 YR 
Cohort 
comp. 

Transfer 
Rate 

  
Average 
Successful 
Completion 
Rate of cohort 

Columbia Gorge 791 10.5% 11.7% 9.2% 27.3% 
Oregon Coast 420 20.3% 6.5% 4.1% 24.9-32.8% 
Clatsop 819 13.7% 7.9% 17.9% 25.4% 
SWOC 2099 25.8% 10.9% 12.5% 21.9% 
Treasure Valley 1793 16.6% 5.3% 11.5% 15.4% 
TBCC 227 15.8% 4.6% 8.5% 23.8% 

 *VFA Data, 2012-2016, most recent available 
 
 Analysis: 

Agenda Item 5.c.2 
March 1, 2021



12 
 

We are on target in comparison to our peers. We transfer slightly less students, and our 
two/six year completion is on the lower side, but not significantly different than peers.  

 
2.3 Student Enrollment and Achievement by Gender and Race/Ethnicity  
 

Analyze the achievement levels for each of the groups listed below. Are there 

differences in achievement levels across groups? Are there strategies you can 

implement to provide more support for these populations? 

 (Attach to Appendix or provide below the Persistence and Success Rates by Gender 

and Race/Ethnicity as identified by the Office of Institutional Research)   
  
Program Name:   

Group  Number of Students 

Enrolled 

% Students Persisting 

from Fall to Fall 
Notes 

Males  AAOT (Ave): 15 

     2017: 7 

     2018: 4 

     2019: 4 

AS (Ave): 2 

     2017: 0 

     2018: 2 

     2019: 0 

AGS (Ave): 13 

     2017: 6 

     2018: 4 

     2019: 3 

AAOT (Ave): 60% 

     2017: 77.78% 

     2018: 40% 

     2019: 66.67% 

AS (Ave): 28.57% 

     2017: 0.00 

     2018: 50% 

     2019: 0.00 

AGS (Ave): 31.71% 

     2017: 26.09% 

     2018: 36.36% 

     2019: 42.86% 

There are far less men 

enrolled than women 

in these programs, 

but men retain 

significantly higher in 

the AAOT (not true of 

AS/AGS). 

Females  AAOT (Ave): 26 

     2017: 11 

     2018: 9 

     2019: 6 

AS (Ave): 14 

     2017: 3 

     2018: 6 

     2019: 5 

AGS (Ave): 18 

     2017: 6  

     2018: 7 

     2019: 5 

AAOT (Ave): 50% 

     2017: 55% 

     2018: 56.25% 

     2019: 37.50% 

AS (Ave): 41.18% 

     2017: 42.86% 

     2018: 37.5% 

     2019: 45.45% 

AGS (Ave): 39.13% 

     2017: 42.86% 

     2018: 35% 

     2019: 41.67% 

There are more 

women enrolled in all 

of these degrees. 

They retain better in 

all degrees except for 

the AAOT. 

Asian-American   N too small N too small  

African-American  N too small N too small  

LatinX AAOT (Ave): 18 

     2017: 4 

     2018: 3 

     2019: 3 

AS (Ave): 2 

AAOT (Ave): 45.45% 

     2017: 66.67% 

     2018: 30% 

     2019: 50% 

AS (Ave): 28.57% 

LatinX students retain 

and complete the 

AGS in greater 

numbers than white 

students. 

Agenda Item 5.c.2 
March 1, 2021



13 
 

     2017: 0 

     2018: 2 

     2019: 0 

AGS (Ave): 6 

     2017: 3 

     2018: 2 

     2019: 1 

     2017: 0 

     2018: 50% 

     2019: 0 

AGS (Ave): 50% 

     2017: 75% 

     2018: 50% 

     2019: 25% 

Native American  N too small N too small  

Other Non-White  N too small N too small  

White  AAOT (Ave): 30 

     2017: 13 

     2018: 10 

     2019: 7 

AS (Ave): 13 

     2017: 3 

     2018: 5 

     2019: 5 

AGS (Ave): 25 

     2017: 9 

     2018: 9 

     2019: 7 

AAOT (Ave): 57.69% 

     2017: 61.9% 

     2018: 62.5% 

     2019: 46.67% 

AS (Ave): 43.33% 

     2017: 37.5% 

     2018: 33.33% 

     2019: 71.43% 

AGS (Ave): 36.23% 

     2017: 30% 

     2018: 37.5% 

     2019: 46.67% 

White students retain 

and complete more 

than other races, 

except in the AGS, 

where LatinX 

students outperform 

other races. 

  
Analysis Highlights and other data; 

 Success rates are similar between online and face to face courses. 
 New offerings have impacted fill rate slightly, but increase in FTE has made this 

worth it. New courses added 5.85 FTE over 2018-2019 (e.g. 2018- 63 courses, 
71.5 FTE, 1.13 fill rate // 2019- 83 courses, 76 FTE, .92 fill rate) fill rate down but 
enrollment and FTE increasing. 

 We are losing students from Year 1 to completion. First term retention and first 
year retention is decent, particularly for full-time students. 

 Part time success rates are abysmal (term retention, annual retention and 
completion). 

 Women out perform men in general, but less so in Communications and 
Arts/Letters. 

 LatinX student outperform white students except in Communications (except for 
2019), Reading-Writing and Science. 

 Student’s grades in RDWR 115 predict performance in subsequent writing 
sections. Taking RDWR 115 does not result in a higher WR121 grade, however, 
passing RDWR 115 does correlate with passing WR 121. This indicates solid 
alignment, but suggests that more cross-over in curriculum may be warranted. 

 Courses with the highest D/F/W/NP rates: CG100, BI 231, BI 222, ECON 201, 
ECON 202, RDWR 115, WR 121, HST 203, and HST 260. There are varying 
reasons for this. For example, in HST 260 the numbers of students taking this 

Agenda Item 5.c.2 
March 1, 2021



14 
 

class are so low that just one D/F/W is substantive. In CG 100 the number of 
students who take this class, and as their first class, is increasing. We are 
revamping that class to a standardized shell that will be taught the same 
regardless of modality. 

 The average DFW percentage each term is 11.5. This means the pass rate is 
88.5%. We are pleased with this. 

 In 2019 general education course pass rates dipped from 81% to 77-78%, evenly 
distributed across all courses/general education categories. This is lower than 
other programs across campus. 

 These programs are universally more popular for students 18-21 years of age, 
followed by those 22-29 years of age). 

 We have far more women than men students. In most cases women retain and 
complete at higher rates than men, except for the AAOT where men retain 10% 
higher than women. 
 

Analysis  
 
2.6 Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities, Challenges (SWOC)  
 
2.6.1 What are the strengths of your program as indicated in the above data?  

 Staffing levels in most areas 
 1st term to 2nd term completion 

 
2.6.2 What are the weaknesses of your program as indicated in the above data?  

 decreasing enrollment 
 degree completion 
 declining course pass rates 
 retention of part-time students in any of the three degrees 

 
2.6.3  What are the opportunities for your program as indicated in the above data? 

 Increase enrollment in male students 
 Increase pass rate (supporting students, not lowering standards) in Gen 

Ed Courses 
 Increase course pass rates 
 Increase retention and completion 
 Increase students of color and other ethnicities across the board 
 Increasing the RDWR and COMM performance of LatinX students.  

 
2.6.4 What challenges exist for your program based on the above data?  

 HOW to improve the Year 1 to 2 retention and completion of all students, 
but part-time students in particular. While we do not have the answers for 
how to address this, we are looking at reports that can be run in Moodle 

Agenda Item 5.c.2 
March 1, 2021



15 
 

and additional training on Drop Out Detective to provide intervention 
earlier. We are also going to tie intervention to an action. For example, “It 

looks like you are struggling in Math, we have a tutoring session on XX, 
we would like for you to attend.” Then following up to see if they attended. 

This is far more intrusive, but indicators suggest that this is effective. 
 
3.0 Student Learning Outcomes Assessment  
 
First, I think it is helpful to provide an overview and background of the Student Learning 
Outcome (SLO) assessment process. The SLO process has three components. All 
curriculum development requires considering assessment. Assessment promotes 
equity, links courses, programs, and institutional outcomes, asks questions, solves 
problems, and seeks to continually improve student learning. Assessment is the 
connection between desired results and what we accomplish. It is no longer enough to 
imagine that our teaching results in student learning, we must measure it and make 
plans to improve results on an ongoing basis. All assessment starts with the following 
questions;  
  

 What are we trying to do (the goal)?  
 How will we know when we have accomplished it (evidence)?  
 Where are we now (current state of performance)?  
 What steps do we need to take to improve where we are (action plan)?  
 Who should be involved in our action plan (collaboration)?  
 How is our action plan working (reflection)?  
 Once we have achieved the goal, what will our next steps be?  

 

 
 
TBCC’s ILO’s are ultimately measured in several different ways. First, they are 
measured at the end of every single course (that contains an ILO) by the teaching 
faculty, and every single course (linked to an ILO) must move a student closer to 
achieving ILO’s. Second, ILO’s are directly measured by an annual survey of all TBCC 

graduates (Graduation Survey). The ILO’s are worked on annually during the Faculty 
Self-Evaluation and reflection process. Thus, ILO’s are continually measured on an 
individual, and collective, cycle. Care has been taken to design courses, and programs, 
so that students continue to experience and move towards mastery of ILO’s. The results 

of this assessment are used to improve student learning.  
  

Agenda Item 5.c.2 
March 1, 2021



16 
 

Program Learning Outcomes (PLO): Program Learning Outcomes are what TBCC 
graduates are expected to achieve as a result of completing their program (degree or 
certificate). These are published in the catalog and course outcomes are mapped to 
them in a way that demonstrates how each student will meet them. Program Learning 
Outcomes are disciplinary (e.g. Criminal Justice, General Education, and so forth). At 
TBCC, PLO’s are measured at the conclusion of every course (individually) by teaching 

faculty and during program review (collectively). Program Learning Outcomes are also 
measured by an annual survey of all TBCC graduates (Graduation Survey) for General 
Education and by seminar course in Career Technical Education (CTE). Thus, PLO’s 

are continually measured on an individual, and collective, cycle. All programs have 
been designed so that students achieve mastery of program learning outcomes by the 
end of their successful program completion. PLO’s are routinely assessed and that the 

results of this assessment are used to improve student programmatic learning through 
Program review goal setting and annual review of goal achievement.  
  
Course Learning Outcomes (CLO): Course Learning Outcomes are what a student is 
expected to know, think, or do at the end of their course experience. These are 
measurable and observable. Bloom’s Taxonomy is an excellent resource for writing and 

developing gradually increasing and complex course learning outcomes until mastery of 
content is achieved. CLO’s are measured at the conclusion of every course, and 

students cannot pass a course without addressing, and achieving, the course learning 
outcomes.  
  
Courses build skill and content mastery, and they cumulate in program mastery. 
Courses are mapped to programs, and programs to institutional learning outcomes. 
Every program must be designed so that all classes, cumulatively, result in mastery of 
both Program Learning outcomes and Institutional Learning Outcomes. (see CLO, ILO, 
PLO mapping chart). The process in its entirety is the process of measuring the Student 
Learning Outcomes, or SLO’s. The mapping document is maintained in the Curriculum 
SharePoint. 
  
Each faculty member works on individual course improvement. Each time a class is 
taught they measure outcomes, collect student feedback (via student surveys), and 
assess themselves. They document what will be done differently next time. The 
Curriculum Specialist sends them their stored data prior to re-teaching the class so that 
they can reflect on selected changes during the next re-teaching. Each course is 
assessed on an ongoing basis, the loop is closed, and new goals for improvement are 
set.  
  
Program and institutional level assessment are worked on individually and collectively 
by faculty. Ongoing data (PLO and ILO) from regular and all adjunct faculty (regardless 
of modality) are collected each term at the conclusion of each course. TBCC holds an 
assessment retreat bi-annually, where data from CLO’s, PLO’s and ILO’s are examined, 

goals are revisited, the loop is closed, and the cycle of ongoing improvement continues.   

Agenda Item 5.c.2 
March 1, 2021



17 
 

 
The General Education Learning Outcomes are as follows (per state OAR and CCWD 
Handbook); 
 
Writing/Information Literacy: Upon completing the writing outcomes a student should be 
able to read actively, think critically, and write purposefully and capably for academic, 
and in some cases, professional audiences. The student should also be able to locate, 
evaluate, and ethically utilize information to communicate effectively and demonstrate 
appropriate reasoning in response to complex issues. A course in writing should; create 
a learning environment that fosters respectful and free exchange of ideas; include 
college-level readings that challenge students and require the analysis of complex 
ideas; provide guided discussions and model practices that help students listen to, 
reflect upon, and respond to others’ ideas; foster students’ ability to summarize and 
respond in writing to ideas generated by reading and discussion; require a substantial 
amount of formal and informal writing; emphasize writing as a recursive process of 
productive revision that results in complete, polished texts appropriate to audience 
needs and rhetorical situations; foreground the importance of focus, organization, and 
logical development of written work; guide students to reflect on their own writing, to 
provide feedback on peers’ drafts, and to respond to peer and instructor comments; 
direct students to craft clear sentences and to recognize and apply the conventions of 
Edited Standard Written English; provide students with practice summarizing, 
paraphrasing, analyzing, synthesizing and citing sources using a conventional 
documentation system; and, require appropriate technologies in the service of writing 
and learning. As a result of taking General Education Writing courses infused with 
Information Literacy, a student who successfully completes should be able to: formulate 
a problem statement; determine the nature and extent of the information needed to 
address the problem; access relevant information effectively and efficiently; evaluate 
information and its source critically; and understand many of the economic, legal, and 
social issues surrounding the use of information. A Writing course infused with 
Information Literacy should include: instruction and practice in identifying gaps in 
knowledge and recognizing when information is needed; instruction and practice in 
finding information efficiently and effectively, using appropriate research tools and 
search strategies; instruction and practice in evaluating and selecting information using 
appropriate criteria; instruction and practice in research strategies that are recursive 
and involve multiple stages such as modification of the original strategy and revision of 
the topic; instruction and practice in the ethical and legal use of information and 
information technologies; and, instruction and practice in creating, producing, and 
communicating understanding of a subject through synthesis of relevant information. 
 
Speech/Oral Communication: Upon completion of the speech/oral communication 
outcomes a student should be able to engage in ethical communication processes that 
accomplish goals, respond to needs of a diverse audience and contexts, and build and 
manage relationships. A course in Oral Communication should; include instruction in 
fundamental communication theories; include instruction and practice of oral 
communication techniques; include instruction and practice in the listening process; 

Agenda Item 5.c.2 
March 1, 2021



18 
 

include instruction and practice in comprehension, interpretation and critical evaluation 
of communication; include instruction and practice in adapting verbal and non-verbal 
messages for the listener and communication contexts; include instruction in the 
responsibilities of ethical communicators; and instruction in the value and 
consequences of effective communication. 
 
Mathematics: A student who successfully completes the Mathematics outcomes should 
be able to use appropriate mathematics to solve problems. The successful student 
should recognize which mathematical concepts are applicable to a scenario, apply 
appropriate mathematics and technology in its analysis, and then accurately interpret, 
validate and communicate the results. A course in collegiate level mathematics should 
require students to; use the tools of arithmetic and algebra to work more complex 
mathematical concepts; design and follow a multi-step mathematical process through to 
a logical conclusion and judge the reasonableness of the results; create mathematical 
models, analyze these models, and, when appropriate, find and interpret solutions; 
compare a variety of mathematical tools, including technology, to determine an effective 
method of analysis; analyze and communicate both problems and solutions in ways that 
are useful to themselves and to others; use mathematical terminology, notation and 
symbolic processes appropriately and correctly; and, make mathematical connections 
to, and solve problems from, other disciplines. 
 
Science/Computer Science: As a result of taking General Education Science or 
Computer Science courses, a student should be able to: Gather, comprehend, and 
communicate scientific and technical information in order to explore ideas, models, and 
solutions and generate further questions; Apply scientific and technical modes of 
inquiry, individually, and collaboratively, to critically evaluate existing or alternative 
explanations, solve problems, and make evidence-based decisions in an ethical 
manner; and assess the strengths and weaknesses of scientific studies and critically 
examine the influence of scientific and technical knowledge on human society and the 
environment. A course in either science or computer science should; analyze the 
development, scope, and limitations of fundamental scientific concepts, models, 
theories, and methods; engage students in problem-solving and investigation, through 
the application of scientific and mathematical methods and concepts, and by using 
evidence to create and test models and draw conclusions. The goal should be to 
develop analytical thinking that includes evaluation, synthesis, and creative insight; 
examine relationships with other subject areas, including the ethical application of 
science in human society and the relevance of science to everyday life; engage 
students in collaborative, hands-on and/or real-life activities that develop scientific 
reasoning and the capacity to apply mathematics and that allow students to experience 
the exhilaration of discovery; and engage students in the design of algorithms and 
computer programs that solve problems. 
 
Social Science: As a result of taking General Education Social Science courses, a 
student should be able to: apply analytical skills to social phenomena in order to 
understand human behavior; and apply knowledge and experience to foster personal 

Agenda Item 5.c.2 
March 1, 2021



19 
 

growth and better appreciate the diverse social world in which we live. An introductory 
course in the Social Sciences should be broad in scope. Courses may focus on 
specialized or interdisciplinary subjects, but there must be substantial course content 
locating the subject in the broader context of the discipline(s). Approved courses will 
help students to: understand the role of individuals and institutions within the context of 
society, assess different theories and concepts and understand the distinctions between 
empirical and other methods of inquiry; utilize appropriate information literacy skills in 
written and oral communication; understand the diversity of human experience and 
thought, individually and collectively; and, apply knowledge and skills to contemporary 
problems and issues. 
 
Arts and Letters: "Arts & Letters" refers to works of art, whether written, crafted, 
designed, or performed and documents of historical or cultural significance. As a result 
of taking General Education Arts & Letters* courses, a student should be able to: 
interpret and engage in the Arts & Letters, making use of the creative process to enrich 
the quality of life; and critically analyze values and ethics within a range of human 
experience and expression to engage more fully in local and global issues. A course in 
Arts & Letters should: introduce the fundamental ideas and practices of the discipline 
and allow students to apply them; elicit analytical and critical responses to historical 
and/or cultural works, such as literature, music, language, philosophy, religion, and the 
visual and performing arts; explore the conventions and techniques of significant forms 
of human expression; place the discipline in a historical and cultural context and 
demonstrate its relationship with other discipline; each course should also do at least 
one of the following: Foster creative individual expression via analysis, synthesis, and 
critical evaluation; compare/contrast attitudes and values of specific historical periods or 
world cultures; and examine the origins and influences of ethical or aesthetic traditions. 
Cultural Literacy outcomes will be included in courses that meet the outcomes and 
criteria of a Discipline Studies requirement. As a result of taking a designated Cultural 
Literacy course, learners would be able to: identify and analyze complex practices, 
values, and beliefs and the culturally and historically defined meanings of difference. A 
course with the Cultural Literacy designation will: explore how culturally-based 
assumptions influence perceptions, behaviors, and policies; and, examine the historical 
bases and evolution of diverse cultural ideas, behaviors, and issues. Each course may 
also do one or more of the following: critically examine the impact of cultural filters on 
social interaction so as to encourage sensitivity and empathy toward people with 
different values or beliefs; investigate how discrimination arises from culturally defined 
meanings attributed to difference; analyze how social institutions perpetuate systems of 
privilege and discrimination; and/or explore social constructs in terms of power 
relationships. 
 
For the 2018-2019 academic year, 77% of all student learning outcomes (Course 
Learning Outcomes, Program Learning Outcomes, and Institutional Learning 
Outcomes) were measured directly by faculty. This is up from 22% in the 2016-2017 
and 2017-2018 academic years; a gain of 55%. The breakdown of measurement per 
term is as follows; 36% of courses in fall, 100% of courses in winter, and 100% of 

Agenda Item 5.c.2 
March 1, 2021



20 
 

courses from spring were measured. Our completion goal for next year will be to 
increase the completion of all SLO’s and achieve 90% completion.   
 
Data (2018-2019) and comparison: 
CLO achievement in all classes: 72.64% (competent and above) 
PLO achievement in all classes:  68.38% (competent and above) 
ILO achievement across all classes: 70.47% (competent and above) 
 
Gen Ed Specific: 
 

  2017-2018  2018-2019  

Course Learning Outcomes  77%  63%  

Program Learning Outcomes  75%  60%  

Institutional Learning Outcomes  76%  58%  
   

 *declining achievement of CLO/PLO/ILO in General Ed courses overall 

 
ARTS & LETTERS (includes COMM) 
CLO achievement in all classes: 74.62% (competent and above) 
PLO achievement in all classes:  70.34% (competent and above) 
ILO achievement across all classes: 74.55% (competent and above) 

 All ILO’s represented 
 Now cover all PLO’s (2020) 

 
RDWR 
CLO achievement in all classes: 62.22% (competent and above) 
PLO achievement in all classes:  60% (competent and above) 
ILO achievement across all classes: 61.11% (competent and above) 

 All written communication ILO 
 All PLO’s covered and aligned 

 
WR 
CLO achievement in all classes: 49.31% (competent and above) 
PLO achievement in all classes:  53.64% (competent and above) 
ILO achievement across all classes: 54.81% (competent and above) 

 All written communication ILO 
 All PLO’s covered and aligned 

 
SCIENCE 
CLO achievement in all classes: 61.35% (competent and above) 
PLO achievement in all classes:  52.87% (competent and above) 
ILO achievement across all classes: 55.03% (competent and above) 

 Primarily Problem Solving Skills with Lifelong Learning and 
Communication secondary ILO 

Agenda Item 5.c.2 
March 1, 2021



21 
 

 All PLO’s covered and aligned 
 

MATH 
CLO achievement in all classes: 79.74% (competent and above) 
PLO achievement in all classes:  76.99% (competent and above) 
ILO achievement across all classes: 73.35% (competent and above) 

 Primarily Problem Solving Skills with Lifelong Learning and 
Communication secondary ILO 

 All PLO’s covered and aligned 
 
SOC SCI 
CLO achievement in all classes: 75.99% (competent and above) 
PLO achievement in all classes:  67.23% (competent and above) 
ILO achievement across all classes: 64.81% (competent and above) 

 All ILO’s represented 
 All PLO’s covered and aligned 

 
General Observations from this year’s SLO data;  

 General Education program learning outcomes were achieved at lower 
percentages than all other program learning outcomes.  

 In general, regular faculty scored significantly lower on student outcome 
achievement than adjunct faculty of all types indicating a need to norm 
responses.   

 Adjuncts scored similarly across modality (online, dual credit, onsite).  
 Barrier Courses (Defined by DFW rates and course learning outcomes 

assessment achievement included); MTH 95, MTH 70, CG100, RDWR 
115, HST 104, BA 250 and BIO 103.   

 It might be worth considering breaking apart RDWR/WR and A/L and 
COMM. 

 We need to improve student learning in ALL areas, though Math and Arts 
& Letters do show significant improvement over previous years. All other 
areas have dropped, with RDWR and WR having dropped significantly in 
terms of Student Learning Outcomes.  

 In terms of inter-rater reliability: all regular faculty scored roughly the 
same, all adjuncts and all dual-credit faculty scored roughly the same (the 
last two scoring higher than regular faculty). However, all three groups 
differed. Again this suggests a need to norm the tool and provide training 
across all three groups.  

 
 

3.1 How has assessment of course level led to improvements in student 

learning and achievement?  

 
ARTS & LETTERS: Assessments highlighted the need for COMM 111 
students to understand basic research and writing skills. Students often 

Agenda Item 5.c.2 
March 1, 2021



22 
 

complete COMM 111 before attempting WR 121 and therefore do not begin 
the course with the skill base needed to succeed. Assessments identified this 
issue and enabled a shift in instruction. By beginning the course with a unit 
on basic writing skills, students experienced greater learning in their first 
speech, and they achieved a significant increase in SLO skill level. 
 
RDWR: RDWR 115 consists of mostly at-risk students. This is a unique 
demographic that often requires additional support in many areas. 
Assessments helped to determine the need for structured tutoring outside of 
the classroom and resulted in the development of wrap-around tutoring. By 
integrating tutoring as part of the course grade, students are able to complete 
modules specifically designed to improve reading, writing, and study skills. 
This established a strong student-centered group and resulted in better-
prepared students for WR 121, although only marked improvement was 
noted in RDWR 115. Formal tutor and instructor training on utilizing the 
developed modules will have a direct impact on student success and is part 
of our three-year goal. 
 
WR: The importance of instructional scaffolding is seen through the collection 
of data in WR 121 and WR 122. By building these courses as student-
centered learning environments, students have experienced significant 
success in the SLO’s. Instructor access to department resources and 

teaching handbooks that emphasize scaffolding has also led to an increase in 
SLO achievement. This was furthered through the successful introduction of 
Trauma Informed Curriculum into WR 121. Student retention was at 99% as 
all students maintained enrollment and actively participated throughout the 
duration of the course. 
 
SCIENCE: all BI courses have research paper requirements. Over time the 
quality of these has declined. Faculty recently mandated that all BI classes 
require students to use only Pub Med Central and Zoterro for citation 
management. Google, Wikipedia and textbook are no longer allowed. This 
has resulted in the quality of these papers going up significantly and as a 
result students are better meeting the course level outcomes.   
 
MATH: The ALEKS course (MTH 99) was design and piloted. It started with 
over 1200 competencies. This was overwhelming for students and forced a 
focus on completing tasks and not learning/applying the material. Instructors 
worked tirelessly as a group to reduce this course down to under 200 
competencies so that it reflected what was really needed to meet course 
learning outcomes and perform at the next level. There were still issues in 
that students did not perform as well in MTH 111 (primary PLO/ILO’s are 

measured in MTH 105 and MTH 111). As a result we brought back MTH 95 
and developed an advising model for learning communities so advisors help 
get students into the correct path, including MTH 95, if students are going the 

Agenda Item 5.c.2 
March 1, 2021



23 
 

MTH 111 route. Over the next few years we will continue to refine this course 
and measure if the MTH 95 course is successful in preparing students better 
for MTH 111.   
 
SOCIAL SCIENCE: In History classes the final exam used to consist of ten 
questions and students could choose three of the ten to address. This has 
changed and now students are required to apply the course learning 
outcomes in a mandatory three questions. This has resulted in better student 
completion of course learning outcomes as measured by faculty. Additionally, 
faculty can now better measure how students meet course level outcomes. 
This process would be worth exploring across social sciences. 
 

3.2 How has assessment of program-level SLOs led to improvements in 

transfer or certificate/degree awards?  

 

I would not say that SLO’s have led to improvement in completion. Our 
transfer rate is up (23%), but we have no way of knowing how these students 
do post transfer (until they complete their degree and then we have those 
results). One of our SLO’s is not retention/completion as they are, properly, 
focused on student learning.  
 

3.3 How has assessment of program/institutional level SLOs led to 

improvements in student learning and achievement? 

 
One of the best examples is in the Math department. SLO achievement for 
developmental math was abysmal. Students were stuck at MTH 20/70/95 for 
long periods of time, often never making progress to college level math. As a 
result we have significantly revamped the developmental math sequence.  
 
MTH 20/70/95/ALEKS:  
 In 2018/19 (six terms), 98 students took MTH 20 and 60% of them 

passed; 97 students took MTH 70 and 76% of them passed; 104 students 
took MTH 95 and 72% passed.  

 Unfortunately, some of these students took these courses multiple times.  
 The MTH 99 ALEKS model is fairly new. However, in that short time, 158 

students have taken the class with a 78% pass rate.  
 Even more impressive is that 18% of those students completed MTH 20 

and 70 in a single term; and, 3% completed MTH 20, MTH 70 and MTH 
95 in a single term. (That’s 21% that completed more than one course!) 

 Getting through the math sequence in not the only goal. It is also 
important to see how students do in a subsequent course. Where they 
must demonstrate fundamental achievement of PLO’s and ILO’s. 

Agenda Item 5.c.2 
March 1, 2021



24 
 

 We changed the MTH 105 pre-requisite to MTH 20 (or one level of 
ALEKS). Thus, 78% of the students who took ALEKS were eligible/able to 
take the subsequent college level math course.  

 We are just beginning to get this data back, but in term one, 82% of the 
students in MTH 105 passed (all of which were ALEKS prepared 
students) many of which achieved competent or better achievement of the 
corresponding CLO/PLO and ILO’s.  

 We do know the jump from ALEKS level III to MTH 111 is steep. For that 
reason we have changed our advising guide to more properly guide 
students. Transfer level degrees in STEM fields suggest MTH 99, MTH 95 
and then MTH 111. However, all AAS degrees and non-STEM degrees 
have the MTH 99 to MTH 105 (and then optional MTH 243- Statistics) 
path. This is significantly shortened and thus far successful. 

 Further we have added college level math to 100% of our degrees 
because we feel the PLO’s and ILO’s are crucial. This too has 

demonstrated success as our Science CLO achievement has improved 
based upon better success in Math!  

 Still of concern is that large percentage of students who did not take the 
follow up class. This is problematic because if they wait several terms, 
they may lose skills that would help them achieve the learning outcomes. 
We are now focusing effort on two different areas; a) more active learning 
in Math classes, and; b) a campaign to start math early and finish their 
degree series. We will see what this does to success over the next couple 
of years.    

 

We have made similar improvements in developmental writing.  
 
RDWR115:  
147 students took RDWR115 this past year.  
 
Of these; 10 got an A, 24 got a B, 20 got a C, 5 got a D, 9 got an F, 1 is an I 
(in progress), 3 got a W, and 75 did not take the follow up course (WR 121).  
 
Discarding the “I”, this means that 89% passed WR 121 after taking RDWR 
115. 10% did not pass. This is excellent and indicates that RDWR115 is 
preparing students to be successful in WR121. Still of concern is that 51% did 
not take the follow up class. Also of concern is that student learning 
outcomes did not significantly improve, and they decreased for writing 
students across the board.  
 
Work remains to see improvement in Science, Social Science and 
Communications (within Arts and Letters). 
 

 

Agenda Item 5.c.2 
March 1, 2021



25 
 

3.4 What challenges remain to make course and program level Student 
Learning Outcome Assessment more effective for your program?  
 
1. System 

Our system is, and has been a significant challenge. TBCC started 
measuring SLO’s in 2013 by hand. This was a huge milestone, and our 

regular faculty have gotten very experienced in this work. All of our 
courses have aligned and published CLO’s, PLO’s and ILO’s. Mapping is 
completed and courses are systematically looked at every three years (at 
minimum). In 2018 adjunct collection and dual-credit faculty assessment 
of SLO’s were added. Our goal, which we have made progress towards is 
that 100% of our SLO’s are measured across all modalities/all faculty/all 
courses and every year for consistency and course/program/institutional 
improvement. We have progressed from 22% to 77% and expect to hit 
90% this year. 
 
In 2018 a database was commissioned. It was easy to use and we 
programmed it with one year of previous data so we had something to 
compare to. However, the database struggled with security issues and 
had to be moved behind a firewall that made it all but impossible for 
people off campus to access. This meant we had our online specialist 
collecting and entering these by hand (for all faculty). She then sent, by 
email, results from the previous time the class was taught for faculty to 
use in improvement. This was amazing and our percentages completed 
increased, but this is not sustainable long term.  
 
At the same time we want to disaggregate by student the learning 
outcomes (versus per course population as a whole). This will require 
significant changes. We are currently piloting a new, hand-grown, system 
that will allow us to measure these in the grading section of the course as 
all faculty must use the Moodle shell. Then info can be pulled into 
Jenzabar and disaggregated by student. This will be a focus of the 
upcoming year from a systemic perspective. 
 

2. Training 

The new system will require training for everyone- again. This is time 
consuming and costly (in terms of training).  
 

3. Time 

This one is a given, but faculty have many responsibilities in addition to 
improving ILO and PLO’s. They tend to be more focused on CLO’s as 

those are easier to change and see direct impact of interventions. PLO’s 

and ILO’s are a longer process and require constant attention to 

purposeful improvement (often times for small improvements).  
  

Agenda Item 5.c.2 
March 1, 2021



26 
 

4.0 Evaluation of Progress Toward Achievement of Previous Program 
Plans - N/A this is the first program review for these programs 
   
 
5.0 Program Plans  
  
5.1 Short-term Plans (three year cycle)  
 

 Establish strong baseline for CLO, PLO and ILO, refine process of using this data 
to make improvements in student learning. 

 Adopt state MTM degrees where appropriate to do so (plan to adopt one per 
year). The idea behind this goal is that as we move students towards more 
specific degrees, the AGS will become less important, less relevant and decline 
in popularity. 

 Add science faculty position (may be combined with another program such as Ag 
or Health) in order to bring down FTE/FTF. 

 Establish learning community degrees and branding in accordance with Guided 
Pathways as a way to focus student interest and “why for completion”.  

 Increase the completion of SLO measurement to 95% and stabilize it here. Also 
work with all faculty to norm responses for accurate measurement. We will 
explore how to best do this through our Sub Committee Assessment group 
(those on this program review).  

 PART TIME STUDENT RETENTION 
1. Develop small-scale learning communities in sequenced classes 

(e.g., RDWR 115, WR 121, WR 122) with faculty mentoring. 
2. Develop a peer tutoring program as research suggests these 

students have greater retention and completion even for part-time 
students. 

3. Begin a campus wide discussion about part-time attendance. 
Where possible students must be encouraged to complete “15 to 

finish”.  
 RETENTION & COMPLETION OF ALL STUDENTS 

1. Develop learning community groups that reach out to 2nd and 3rd 
term students developing a - in a group, learning community 
developing a connection to somebody who encourages them to 
completion. 

2. Ensure students register for following year prior to leaving for 
summer! 

3. Develop a “marker of success” at end of year one- certificate, 
congratulations, letter or even recognition of completing Gen Ed 
core. This could be done at an in-person ceremony with food. 

4. Explore a show case of work (student work) poster capstone- and 
invite the community. The foundation could be involved and support 

Agenda Item 5.c.2 
March 1, 2021



27 
 

with food. Could also show it at a major fundraiser. These projects 
could demonstrate achievement of SLO’s over time.   

5. Implement trauma informed practices across the curriculum and 
rain all faculty to use. 

 
Note: In fall we will prioritize these goals and develop implementation plans via our 
assessment group.  
 
 

CLO GOALS 
 
Specific goals to address individual barrier courses, and courses with high D/F/W 
rates are as follows; 

 
 BI 103: This class was completely revamped in 2019/2020 making it an 

introductory sequence and not a Biology major’s sequence. We will need 
to examine data over the next year or two to determine if this has indeed 
increased student success in the course. 

 
 BI 231- This is the first class in the A & P sequence and is designed to be 

extremely rigorous. One thing we have identified that would improve 
success is to strengthen the rigor/alignment of the BI 112 pre-requisite. 
Additionally, having past students talk about the requirement of the rigor in 
this class may help students better understand the what/why. We will also 
explore proper advising for this class as it is not an appropriate elective (a 
student needs to be program secure and motivated to succeed). If all of 
this does not demonstrate improvement, we will explore the addition of a 
science recitation section requiring an extra three hours in the lab each 
week.   
 

 BI 222- This is an unusual class in that it is very rarely taught and only has 
small cohorts of students who plan to go to OHSU. As such losing one 
student impacts the overall stats of the class. Our plan is to remove this 
course from the catalog or teaching rotation.  

 
 CG100: During 2020 this course will be completely revamped and taught 

standardized across all sections. Additionally, the curriculum will be more 
prescribed and universally discussed. Student progress in this course will 
be shared out at Curriculum/Faculty meetings in order to find opportunities 
for other faculty to purposefully embed components in their own sections. 

 
 ECON 201/ECON 202: The first thing we are working on in this class is 

advising appropriate students into this class. Students who keep going are 
successful in the class. One change we will make is ensuring that the 

Agenda Item 5.c.2 
March 1, 2021



28 
 

WR121 pre-reqs are met as this is a heavy writing class. Second, we will 
offer students a choice of Econ or History (to address students with limited 
math skills/logical thinking skills) as MTH 95 is suggested for this class. 
Instructor will re-look at curriculum and add several explanatory videos to 
assist students with difficult concepts. We will re-measure after 
implementing these measures.     
 

 HST 104- This course was removed from the catalog. 
 

 HST 203 – This course will be revamped given the instructor’s added 

Moodle/online expertise. The revamping will look at what students take 
this class and why. Once that is determined the class will be modified to 
address the needs of those students in particular while addressing course 
learning outcomes. 
 

 HST 260- This class has been analyzed in great detail as it is taught by 
just one adjunct. This adjunct has mapped the time, rigor, and grading 
across multiple sections at multiple schools with the following results; 

 

 

Agenda Item 5.c.2 
March 1, 2021



29 
 

 
 
This term he is implementing a survey of each student to ascertain their 
thoughts on the strengths and weaknesses of the course for future 
analysis and improvements.  
 

 RDWR 115: 
 Redevelop the structure of RDWR 115, beginning with clear policy 

on tutoring requirements and grade impact. Students are required 
to complete tutoring hours in the Writing Studio, and these must be 
consistent in all sections of RDWR 115 with similar grade 
consequences. Success will be measured by comparing the Writing 
Studio grade component to the course grade earned.  

 Require instructor training on the proper utilization of tutoring 
services in the classroom and foster a “Put the Pencil Down” 

mindset. This should result in improved SLO’s as students are able 

to effectively participate in the writing process. 
 Pilot a cohort and/or co-requisite program that combines RDWR 

115 and WR 121. Studies have shown that students taught by the 
same instructor or complete both courses in the same term are 
more likely to experience greater success in the SLO’s. This will 

address the issue of 51% of students not attempting the follow-up 
course in the Writing sequence. 

 
 WR 121 

 Emphasize multimodal literacy by integrating a variety of 
technology mediums into the classroom. This will enable students 

Agenda Item 5.c.2 
March 1, 2021



30 
 

to improve their writing abilities and increase their CLO skill level 
through audience awareness, exigency, and engagement. 

 Create consistency and academic rigor by formalizing the core 
content required in WR 121 through instructor training and 
department meetings. Students in all WR 121 sections will find 
commonality in terminology and expectations, creating a student-
centered environment that may lead to greater completion rates. 

 
 
PLO GOALS 
 
RDWR & WR 
WRITING: Read actively, think critically and write purposefully and capable for academic and, in 
some cases, professional audiences; Locate, evaluate, and ethically utilize information to 
communicate effectively; and Demonstrate appropriate reasoning in response to complex issues. 
 
INFORMATIONAL LITERACY: (embedded in writing courses) Formulate a problem statement; 
Determine nature and extent of the information needed to address the problem; Access relevant 
information he use of information effectively and efficiently; Evaluate information and its source 
critically; Understand many of the economic, legal and social issues surrounding the use of 
information 
 

1. Implement writing across the curriculum;  
a. All 100-level courses will incorporate at least one 

assignment that focuses on information literacy. By 
internalizing the process needed to acquire, assess, and 
utilize information, students will develop the necessary 
skillsets to improve in all SLO’s as they complete each 

course. Suggested assignments and grading rubrics will be 
developed for faculty to use. Training will be provided to all 
faculty. 

b. All 200-level courses will require a research paper that 
integrates scholarly research, enabling numerous 
opportunities to refine information literacy and critical 
thinking skills. Faculty will work together to develop these 
requirements and will ideally use this opportunity as their 
space to implement the “Writing Across the Curriculum” 

program. This will result in a change to all prerequisites, as 
200 level students must first complete WR 121. 

c. Explore use of one book (e.g. Garbology or Racism) that 
could be used across the curriculum to implement topic 
specific writing AND meet an ILO outcome in a cumulative 
project. 

d. Explore changing RDWR to a WR sequential course, giving 
a psychological indicator to students that this is a sequence. 

 

Agenda Item 5.c.2 
March 1, 2021



31 
 

COMM (A&L) 
SPEECH/ORAL: Engage in ethical communication processes that accomplish goals; Respond to 
the needs of diverse audiences and contexts; and 
Build and manage relationships. 
 

 COMM courses will incorporate one assignment or speech that focuses on 
the needs of a specific demographic that differs from the experience of the 
speaker. This will involve extensive research and community outreach. 
Additional assignments will be integrated into the scaffolding that 
specifically explores the makeup of diverse audiences and the implications 
of ethical responsibility. This can be measured through student success in 
constructing a speech that appropriately and effectively reaches the 
targeted demographic.   

 Discipline specific speaking (integrated/intersection) 
 All COMM teachers will discuss, understand and implement this 

requirement. 
 
SOC SCIENCE 
SOCIAL SCIENCE: Apply analytical skills to social phenomena in order to understand human 
behavior; and Apply knowledge and experience to foster personal growth and better appreciate 
the diverse social world in which we live. 

 Explore requiring a history course on every degree map. Alternatively 
will work with other social science faculty to require a written essay 
writing to the social science PLO’s at the end of each course. 

 
SCIENCE 
SCIENCE/COMP SCIENCE: Gather, comprehend, and communicate scientific and technical 
information in order to explore ideas, models, and solutions and generate further questions; Apply 
scientific and technical modes of inquiry, individually, and collaboratively, to critically evaluate 
existing or alternative explanations, solve problems, and make evidence-based decisions in an 
ethical manner; and Assess the strengths and weaknesses of scientific studies and critically 
examine the influence of scientific and technical knowledge on human society and the 
environment. 
 

 Explore requiring a BI course on every degree map. Alternatively will 
work with other science faculty to require the research paper as 
required in Biology in order to further the advancement of PLO 
understanding at the end of each course. 

 
MTH 
(Old POLs) MATHEMATICS: Use appropriate mathematics to solve problems; and Recognize 
which mathematical concepts are applicable to a scenario, apply appropriate mathematics and 
technology in its analysis, and then accurately interpret, validate, and communicate the results. 
Reworded as follows; Use appropriate mathematics to solve problems: Recognize which 
mathematical concepts are applicable to a scenario, apply appropriate mathematics and 
technology in its analysis, and then accurately interpret, validate, and communicate the results. 
And, use logical reasoning to make connections between various mathematical concepts and 
representations. 

Agenda Item 5.c.2 
March 1, 2021



32 
 

 
The PLOs were modified to better categorize the course learning outcomes. The 
previous versions were very similar to the Oregon state PLOs, which both 
basically said the same thing. They were both combined into our new PLO1, and 
we added PLO2 to cover the remaining learning outcomes that typically are in 
every math class. This will allow a better grouping of math outcomes that will 
inform us about what parts of our math classes need improvement. Specific 
goals will include; 

 Standard final exams across courses, that measure (ensure learning)- 
starting MTH 111 and 105 

 Evening tutoring- tutoring improvements and recorded lectures/help 
features 

 
 
ILO GOALS 
 

1. Lifelong Learning & Professional Competence: Students will engage in and take 
responsibility for intentional learning, seeks new knowledge and skills to guide their 
continuous and independent development and adapt to new situations. 

2. Communication Skills: Students will effectively communicate, both orally and in writing, 
thoughts in a clear, well-organized manner to persuade, inform and/or convey ideas.  

3. Problem Solving Skills: Students will critically analyze and solve problems, differentiating 
facts from opinions, by using informed judgement based on evidence, sound reasoning, 
and/or creativity in a variety of situations and areas of study. 

4. Cultural Awareness: Students will demonstrate respect, honesty, fairness and ethical 
principles by understanding and appreciating differences in cultures and behaviors. 

 
Last year we focused on two ILO’s and reported out on them via self-assessment 
at the end of the year. This did not feel particularly meaningful. We have also 
been struggling with getting everyone to measure ILO’s with the same 

consistency. Our plan is to; 
 

1. Revisit the ILO rubrics and train all faculty (regular and 
adjunct on the use of them. At the end of the year check 
inter-rater reliability again to see if there has been 
measureable improvement. 

2. Use the CCOG’s to move towards signature assignments 

with common grading protocols. 
3. Implementing writing across the curriculum that incorporates 

pieces of the ILO’s into every class creating a more 

comprehensive approach. 
4. Faculty will participate in professional development 

opportunities specifically designed to assist in updating 
curriculum and other ways to effectively measure SLO work.  
As faculty work together to develop their curriculum and 

Agenda Item 5.c.2 
March 1, 2021



33 
 

inform the process, students will benefit from continuity and 
consistency, resulting in SLO success. 
 

Additionally, we will explore the possibility of; 
1. Developing a core group of classes that exist on every map and are taught 

by regular faculty. Those classes will have purposefully embedded ILO’s. 

At the end of their first year (3rd term) each one of these classes would 
require a poster/presentation/paper/project/applied problem that 
demonstrates achievement of all ILO’s at the proficient level. This gives 

the students year two to gain additional competency (mastery).This would 
serve as the official summative assessment of ILO achievement and 
results would be looked at by all Gen Ed faculty in this group of classes for 
measurement, improvement, and tracking. 

 
5.2 Long-term Plans (six year cycle)  
 
I do not see a great deal of change in our 3 to 6 year goals (see above). We need to 
continue these programs, growing them and demonstrating increased student success. 
 
6.0 Requests for Resources  
   
For any specific aspect of a plan listed in 5.0 that would require additional financial 
resources, complete the form below.  If you are aware of a potential funding source 
other than college general funds, identify the potential source below. 

  
Type of 
Resource  

Requested 
Amount  

Potential Funding Source  

Personnel  85k 

 

6k 

Priority for faculty in this area would be science related 
(multi-disciplinary) 

Training dollars 

 

Equipment  15k Add additional microscopes 

Supplies  3k Chemistry supplies should we locate a chemistry 
teacher 

Total 
Requested 
Amount  

109k Note: In general, the continuing operating budget is 
sufficient to meet the needs of this program. The 
biggest costs are in course supplies, which are covered 
by student course fees associated with said classes.  

Agenda Item 5.c.2 
March 1, 2021



34 
 

  
6.1 Describe the resource request.    
For the most part this program is funded through the General Fund and this is both 
sustainable and meeting the needs of the programs. In terms of program needs in the 
next six years we see the need for additional microscopes to outfit the second lab, 
chemistry supplies (also for the second lab), and a science teacher who could also do 
double duty in health or Ag Sciences. Success on these goals is not dependent upon 
this additional funding. 
 
6.2 What program outcome(s) does the resource request address?   
This request would improve the Science/Comp Science program learning outcome by 
allowing us to continue the development of different science courses offered in different 
modalities to meet the needs of diversified learners in different ways.  
 
6.3 What measurable outcome(s) will result from filling this resource request?   

Increased number of science courses 
Increased number of science courses online/hybrid 
Student success in science courses, as demonstrated by individual course pass rates 
 
6.4 How does this request further college fulfillment of the college mission and its 

Core Theme objectives? 

Helps further the core theme of Educational Excellence: Students are provided with the 
opportunity to succeed in an equitable, inclusive and supportive environment that 
enhances individual and professional growth, through academic, personal and 
professional development. 
 
7.0 Advisory Committee and Employer Input (CTE Programs Only): 
N/A 
 
8.0 High School, Community, and Employer Outreach 

 
(CTE and Transfer Programs) what dual credit offerings does your program support? In 

which area high schools are these dual credit courses offered? How will your program 

support the expansion of dual credit offerings at area high schools?  

 

Dual Credit Offerings: 
Nestucca Neah-Kah-Nie TSD Other (new 2019) 

 WR 121 
 WR 122 
 ENG 105 
 SPA 101-

103 
 HST 

 COMM 111 
 WR 121 
 WR 122 
 MTH 111 
 MTH 112 

 ENG 104 
 ENG 105 
 WR 121 
 MTH 111 
 MTH 112 

WR 121- 
Washington County 
 
WR 122- 
Washington County 

Agenda Item 5.c.2 
March 1, 2021



35 
 

 BI 101, 102 
and 103 

 GS 108 
 

 COMM 111 
 EC 201 

 

*Continually expanding 
 
9.0 Executive Summary  
 
Tillamook Bay Community College’s (TBCC) General Education review looked at the 

AAOT, the AGS, the AS and the General Education Program Learning Outcomes which 
exist in Reading/Writing, Communication, Social Science, Science and Math. These 
degrees, and general education outcomes, are important to all students and exist in 
every degree/certificate over 44 credits in length. The process has been difficult to 
measure, historically, because of the amount of SLO data completed. Over the past 
three years great strives have been made and now 80-90% of CLO’s, PLO’s and ILO’s 

are gathered for every single course regardless of modality taught. This is a huge 
accomplishment! Additionally inter-rater reliability has improved, though it is not yet 
where we would like to see it. An additional success is that all of this data has resulted 
in significant course level improvement. We will continue to work on course success and 
are taking a particularly in depth look at D/F/W courses and looking at increasing 
student success in those courses.  
 
We have additional work to do in program and institutional level student outcome work. 
While Math and the Arts and Letters show overall improvement, Writing, Science and 
Social Science need more work. General Education program learning outcomes were 
achieved at lower percentages than all other program learning outcomes and we need 
to improve this. 
 
We also need to work on the retention and completion of all students, but particularly 
part-time students. This is a significant challenge because life issues often get in the 
way for these students. Nonetheless, we have started looking at what we can do in this 
area. We have formed a sub-group of Curriculum Committee (the Assessment Group) 
and we will continue digging into these issues in depth in the coming years. There are 
areas of strength to capitalize on and those include first to second term completion and 
staffing/faculty levels in most areas. Additionally, we have added a graduation survey to 
assess student achievement of ILO’s and Gen Ed PLO’s in an indirect way. Over the 

next three years we will focus on more specific direct measurements.   
 
10.0 Chief Academic Officer Program Review Summary Page   
 
I’d like to start this CAO review summary by thanking the faculty and staff for their hard 
work on this program review. In particular Michele DeGraffenreid, Chris Carlson, Geza 

Agenda Item 5.c.2 
March 1, 2021



36 
 

Laszlo, Sydney Elliott, John Sandusky and Bob Pietruszka should be commended for 
their work and dedication to seeing this program review through to the end. We are 
fortunate to have faculty in this program that are not just educated and experienced, but 
also deeply invested in student success.  
 
As a group we have committed to the goals below. I am looking forward to watching this 
process unfold and the faculty own this process! 
 
 
Gen Ed Program Review Goals Owns 

Measure 
Increasing the number of students who take the entire math 
sequence SEQUENTIALLY in their first year. 

Math Dept 

Increasing the number of students who take the entire writing 
sequence SEQUENTIALLY in their first year. 

Writing Dept 

Adopt state MTM degrees where appropriate to do so (plan to adopt 
one per year). The idea behind this goal is that as we move students 
towards more specific degrees, the AGS will become less important, 
less relevant and decline in popularity. 

CAO & 
Curriculum 
Committee 

Add science faculty position (may be combined with another program 
such as Ag or Health) in order to bring down FTE/FTF. 

CAO   

Establish learning community degrees and branding in accordance 
with Guided Pathways as a way to focus student interest and “why 

for completion”.  

Guided 
Pathways 
Group 

Increase the completion of SLO measurement to 95% and stabilize it 
here. Also work with all faculty to norm responses for accurate 
measurement. We will explore how to best do this through our Sub 
Committee Assessment group (those on this program review).  

Assessment 
Committee 
(consisting 
of all Gen Ed 
Department 
Chairs) 
 

Agenda Item 5.c.2 
March 1, 2021



37 
 

PART TIME STUDENT RETENTION 
1. Develop small-scale learning communities in sequenced classes 
(e.g., RDWR 115, WR 121, WR 122) with faculty mentoring. 
2. Develop a peer tutoring program as research suggests these 
students have greater retention and completion even for part-time 
students. 
3. Begin a campus wide discussion about part-time attendance. 
Where possible students must be encouraged to complete “15 to 

finish”.  

Assessment 
Committee, 
Library, CAO 
& Curriculum 
Committee 

RETENTION & COMPLETION OF ALL STUDENTS 
1. Develop learning community groups that reach out to 2nd and 3rd 
term students developing a - in a group, learning community 
developing a connection to somebody who encourages them to 
completion. 
2. Ensure students register for following year prior to leaving for 
summer! 
3. Develop a “marker of success” at end of year one- certificate, 
congratulations, letter or even recognition of completing Gen Ed 
core. This could be done at an in-person ceremony with food. 
4. Explore a show case of work (student work) poster capstone- and 
invite the community. The foundation could be involved and support 
with food. Could also show it at a major fundraiser. These projects 
could demonstrate achievement of SLO’s over time.   
5. Implement trauma informed practices across the curriculum and 
rain all faculty to use. 

Assessment 
Committee, 
Library, CAO 
& Curriculum 
Committee 

BI 103: This class was completely revamped in 2019/2020 making it 
an introductory sequence and not a Biology major’s sequence. We 

will need to examine data over the next year or two to determine if 
this has indeed increased student success in the course. 

Bob 

Agenda Item 5.c.2 
March 1, 2021



38 
 

BI 231- This is the first class in the A & P sequence and is designed 
to be extremely rigorous. One thing we have identified that would 
improve success is to strengthen the rigor/alignment of the BI 112 
pre-requisite. Additionally, having past students talk about the 
requirement of the rigor in this class may help students better 
understand the what/why. We will also explore proper advising for 
this class as it is not an appropriate elective (a student needs to be 
program secure and motivated to succeed). If all of this does not 
demonstrate improvement, we will explore the addition of a science 
recitation section requiring an extra three hours in the lab each week.   

Bob 

ECON 201/ECON 202: The first thing we are working on in this class 
is advising appropriate students into this class. Students who keep 
going are successful in the class. One change we will make is 
ensuring that the WR121 pre-reqs are met as this is a heavy writing 
class. Second, we will offer students a choice of Econ or History (to 
address students with limited math skills/logical thinking skills) as 
MTH 95 is suggested for this class. Instructor will re-look at 
curriculum and add several explanatory videos to assist students 
with difficult concepts. We will re-measure after implementing these 
measures.     

Darryl 

RDWR 115: 
§ Redevelop the structure of RDWR 115, beginning with clear policy 
on tutoring requirements and grade impact. Students are required to 
complete tutoring hours in the Writing Studio, and these must be 
consistent in all sections of RDWR 115 with similar grade 
consequences. Success will be measured by comparing the Writing 
Studio grade component to the course grade earned.  
§ Require instructor training on the proper utilization of tutoring 
services in the classroom and foster a “Put the Pencil Down” 

mindset. This should result in improved SLO’s as students are able 

to effectively participate in the writing process Pilot a cohort and/or 
co-requisite program that combines RDWR 115 and WR 121. 
Studies have shown that students taught by the same instructor or 
complete both courses in the same term are more likely to 
experience greater success in the SLO’s. This will address the issue 

of 51% of students not attempting the follow-up course in the Writing 
sequence. 

Michele/Syd 

Agenda Item 5.c.2 
March 1, 2021



39 
 

WR 121 
§ Emphasize multimodal literacy by integrating a variety of 
technology mediums into the classroom. This will enable students to 
improve their writing abilities and increase their CLO skill level 
through audience awareness, exigency, and engagement. 
§ Create consistency and academic rigor by formalizing the core 
content required in WR 121 through instructor training and 
department meetings. Students in all WR 121 sections will find 
commonality in terminology and expectations, creating a student-
centered environment that may lead to greater completion rates. 

Michele/Syd 

HST 203 – This course will be revamped given the instructor’s added 

Moodle/online expertise. The revamping will look at what students 
take this class and why. Once that is determined the class will be 
modified to address the needs of those students in particular while 
addressing course learning outcomes. 

John 

Implement writing across the curriculum; 
a. All 100-level courses will incorporate at least one assignment that 
focuses on information literacy. By internalizing the process needed 
to acquire, assess, and utilize information, students will develop the 
necessary skillsets to improve in all SLO’s as they complete each 

course. Suggested assignments and grading rubrics will be 
developed for faculty to use. Training will be provided to all faculty. 
b. All 200-level courses will require a research paper that integrates 
scholarly research, enabling numerous opportunities to refine 
information literacy and critical thinking skills. Faculty will work 
together to develop these requirements and will ideally use this 
opportunity as their space to implement the “Writing Across the 

Curriculum” program. This will result in a change to all prerequisites, 

as 200 level students must first complete WR 121. 
c. Explore use of one book (e.g. Garbology or Racism) that could be 
used across the curriculum to implement topic specific writing AND 
meet an ILO outcome in a cumulative project. 
d. Explore changing RDWR to a WR sequential course, giving a 
psychological indicator to students that this is a sequence. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Michele/Syd 

Agenda Item 5.c.2 
March 1, 2021



40 
 

• COMM courses will incorporate one assignment or speech that 

focuses on the needs of a specific demographic that differs from the 
experience of the speaker. This will involve extensive research and 
community outreach. Additional assignments will be integrated into 
the scaffolding that specifically explores the makeup of diverse 
audiences and the implications of ethical responsibility. This can be 
measured through student success in constructing a speech that 
appropriately and effectively reaches the targeted demographic.   
• Discipline specific speaking (integrated/intersection) 
• All COMM teachers will discuss, understand and implement this 

requirement. 

Michele  

• Explore requiring a history course on every degree map. 

Alternatively will work with other social science faculty to require a 
written essay writing to the social science PLO’s at the end of each 

course. 

John 

Specific goals will include; 
• Standard final exams across courses, that measure (ensure 

learning)- starting MTH 111 and 105 
• Evening tutoring- tutoring improvements and recorded lectures/help 
features 

Geza/ Chris 

• Explore requiring a BI course on every degree map. Alternatively 

will work with other science faculty to require the research paper as 
required in Biology in order to further the advancement of PLO 
understanding at the end of each course. 

Bob 

1. Revisit the ILO rubrics and train all faculty (regular and adjunct on 
the use of them. At the end of the year check inter-rater reliability 
again to see if there has been measureable improvement. 
2. Use the CCOG’s to move towards signature assignments with 

common grading protocols. 
3. Implementing writing across the curriculum that incorporates 
pieces of the ILO’s into every class creating a more comprehensive 

approach. 
4. Faculty will participate in professional development opportunities 
specifically designed to assist in updating curriculum and other ways 
to effectively measure SLO work.  As faculty work together to 
develop their curriculum and inform the process, students will benefit 
from continuity and consistency, resulting in SLO success. 

Assessment 
Committee 

Agenda Item 5.c.2 
March 1, 2021



41 
 

1. Developing a core group of classes that exist on every map and 
are taught by regular faculty. Those classes will have purposefully 
embedded ILO’s. At the end of their first year (3rd term) each one of 
these classes would require a 
poster/presentation/paper/project/applied problem that demonstrates 
achievement of all ILO’s at the proficient level. This gives the 

students year two to gain additional competency (mastery).This 
would serve as the official summative assessment of ILO 
achievement and results would be looked at by all Gen Ed faculty in 
this group of classes for measurement, improvement, and tracking. 

Assessment 
Committee 

 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 5.c.2 
March 1, 2021



42 
 

 
 

Transfer Degrees (AS, AGS and AAOT) 

The data included here are for all of the courses included in these transfer degrees. Courses have been categorized by ‘department’: 

Arts/Humanities: 

ART 
LANG 

SPA 

ENG 
MUS 

 

RD/WR: 
RD 

WR 
RDWR 

 

Math: 
MTH 

 

Social Science: 
SOC 

PSY 

GEO 
HIST 

REL 
EC 

PHL 

PS 
 

Science: 

BI 
GS 

ESR 

G 
 

Communications: 
COMM 

 

 

Courses – Data describing courses and enrollment in Transfer degrees for the academic years 2017-2019 

The table below displays the number of enrollments by department for the last 3 years. Duplicated 

Departments:  2017 2018 2019 Grand Total 

Art/Hum 394 332 266 992 

CG 136 168 171 475 

Comm 131 157 160 448 

MTH 519 430 441 1390 

RD/WR 328 348 323 999 

Science 261 395 350 1006 

SocScience 469 352 376 1197 

Grand Total 2238 2182 2087 6507 

 

The table below shows the number of sections by department by year: 

Departments:  2017 2018 2019 (blank) Grand Total 

Art/Hum 29 26 20  75 

CG 8 10 14  32 

Comm 10 11 12  33 

MTH 39 35 41  115 

RD/WR 30 24 25  79 

Science 27 28 30  85 

SocScience 26 23 31  80 

(blank) 1 3 3  7 

Grand Total 170 160 176  506 

 

 

The tables below show the number of sections of each course by year, by department 

Departments:  2017 2018 2019 Grand Total 

Art/Hum 29 26 20 75 

American Literature to 1865 1 1  2 

American Literature to 1865 (OER)   1 1 

Drawing  1  1 

Drawing I 1   1 

First Year Spanish - First Term 1 1 1 3 

First Year Spanish - Second Term 5 1 1 7 

First Year Spanish - Third Term 2 1  3 

Introduction to Drawing 1 2 3 6 

Introduction to Folklore and Mythol 1 1  2 

Introduction to Jazz History  1  1 

Agenda Item 5.c.2 
March 1, 2021



43 
 

Introduction to Jazz History (Onlin 2   2 

Introduction to Literature (Drama) 2 3 2 7 

Introduction to Literature (Fiction 3 3 3 9 

Introduction to Literature (Poetry) 1 1 1 3 

Introduction to the History of Rock 1 1 1 3 

Modern Art History - Early 20th Cen  1 1 2 

Modern Art History: Early 20th Cent 1   1 

Music Appreciation (Online) 1 1 1 3 

Music Cultures of the World (Onlin 1 1  2 

Music Cultures of the World (Online   1 1 

Painting I 1  2 3 

Painting II 1  1 2 

Printmaking  1  1 

Survey of American Literature  1  1 

Survey of American Literature (Onli 1  1 2 

Understanding Architecture 1 2  3 

Understanding New Media Arts 1 2  3 

 

Departments:  2017 2018 2019 Grand Total 

CG 8 10 14 32 

College Survival and Success 4 5  9 

College Survival and Success (OER) 1 1 6 8 

College Survival and Success (Onlin 2 2 3 7 

Cooperative Education: Career Explo   2 2 

Introduction to Today's Careers: He 1 2 3 6 

Comm 10 11 12 33 

Gender and Communication 1   1 

Gender and Communication (OER)  1  1 

Introduction to Intercultural Commu 1 1 2 4 

Public Speaking 7 6 7 20 

Public Speaking (OER)  1  1 

Public Speaking (Online)   2 2 

Public Speaking (Online)(OER)  1  1 

Small Group Communication: Process 1 1 1 3 

Departments:  2017 2018 2019 Grand Total 

MTH 39 35 41 115 

Basic Math (ALEKS Online)   1 1 

Basic Math (ALEKS)   1 1 

Basic Math (Online)   1 1 

Basic Math (Online) (OER)  1 2 3 

Basic Math (Online)(OER) 3 3  6 

Calculus I   1 1 

Calculus I (OER) 1 2 1 4 

Calculus II   1 1 

Calculus II (OER) 1  1 2 

Calculus II(OER)  1  1 

Calculus III 1   1 

Calculus III (OER)  1  1 

College Algebra 3 3 2 8 

College Algebra (OER) 2 2 6 10 

Agenda Item 5.c.2 
March 1, 2021



44 
 

College Algebra(OER)  1  1 

Elementary Functions 1 4 2 7 

Elementary Functions (OER) 2 1 3 6 

Elementary Functions(OER)  1  1 

Foundations of Elementary Math I 1 2  3 

Foundations of Elementary Math II  2  2 

Foundations of Elementary Math III 1  1 2 

Intermediate Algebra  1  1 

Intermediate Algebra (ALEKS MATH)   1 1 

Intermediate Algebra (OER) 1 1 8 10 

Intermediate Algebra (Online ALEKS)   1 1 

Intermediate Algebra Second 4 wk 1   1 

Introductory Algebra  2 1 3 

Introductory Algebra - First 4 wk 2   2 

Introductory Algebra - Second 4 wk 1   1 

Introductory Algebra - Second Term 2   2 

Introductory Algebra (ALEKS MATH)   1 1 

Introductory Algebra (OER)  1 3 4 

Introductory Algebra (Online ALEKS)   1 1 

Introductory Algebra (Online)  2  2 

Introductory Algebra (Online) (OER)   1 1 

Introductory Algebra(OER)  1  1 

Math 60 3   3 

Math 60 (OER) 4   4 

Math 60 (Online) 1   1 

Math 95 4 1  5 

Math 95 (OER) 1   1 

Math 95(OER)  1  1 

Statistics I (OER) 1 1 1 3 

Statistics II 1   1 

Vector Calculus I 1   1 

 

Departments:  2017 2018 2019 Grand Total 

RD/WR 30 24 25 79 

College Reading 1   1 

College Reading and Writing  6 6 12 

English Composition I 5 5 5 15 

English Composition I (Hybrid) 1 1  2 

English Composition I (Hybrid) (OER   1 1 

English Composition I (OER)  1 2 3 

English Composition I (Online) 3 2 4 9 

English Composition II 6 4 3 13 

English Composition II (Online) 3 3 2 8 

Introduction to Expository Writing 1   1 

Reading/Writing 8   8 

Technical and Professional Writing 2 2 2 6 

Science 27 28 30 85 

Biology 7 6 7 20 

Cell Biology for Health Occupations 4 4 2 10 

Environmental Science: Biological P 1 2 4 7 

Agenda Item 5.c.2 
March 1, 2021



45 
 

Human Anatomy and Physiology I   2 2 

Human Anatomy and Physiology I (OER 2 2  4 

Human Anatomy and Physiology II  2 2 4 

Human Anatomy and Physiology II (OE 2   2 

Human Anatomy and Physiology III 2   2 

Human Anatomy and Physiology III (O  2 2 4 

Human Genetics  1 1 2 

Introduction to Physical Geology  1  1 

Introduction to Physical Geology (O 1  2 3 

Microbiology 2 2 2 6 

Physical Geology 1   1 

Physical Geology (Online)  1 2 3 

Physical Science (Oceanography) 3  1 4 

Physical Science (Oceanography) (On  1 2 3 

Physical Science (Oceanography)(Hyb  1  1 

Principles of Biology I 1 1  2 

Principles of Biology II  1  1 

Principles of Biology III 1 1  2 

Volcanoes and Their Activity (Onlin   1 1 

 

Departments:  2017 2018 2019 Grand Total 

Science 27 28 30 85 

Biology 7 6 7 20 

Cell Biology for Health Occupations 4 4 2 10 

Environmental Science: Biological P 1 2 4 7 

Human Anatomy and Physiology I   2 2 

Human Anatomy and Physiology I (OER 2 2  4 

Human Anatomy and Physiology II  2 2 4 

Human Anatomy and Physiology II (OE 2   2 

Human Anatomy and Physiology III 2   2 

Human Anatomy and Physiology III (O  2 2 4 

Human Genetics  1 1 2 

Introduction to Physical Geology  1  1 

Introduction to Physical Geology (O 1  2 3 

Microbiology 2 2 2 6 

Physical Geology 1   1 

Physical Geology (Online)  1 2 3 

Physical Science (Oceanography) 3  1 4 

Physical Science (Oceanography) (On  1 2 3 

Physical Science (Oceanography)(Hyb  1  1 

Principles of Biology I 1 1  2 

Principles of Biology II  1  1 

Principles of Biology III 1 1  2 

Volcanoes and Their Activity (Onlin   1 1 

 

Departments:  2017 2018 2019 Grand Total 

SocScience 26 23 31 80 

Being and Knowing (Online)   1 1 

Comparative Political Systems   1 1 

Ethics (Online)   1 1 

History of Sexuality in America  1  1 

Agenda Item 5.c.2 
March 1, 2021



46 
 

History of the Middle East 1  1 2 

History of the United States from 1 3 3 3 9 

History of the United States to 184 1 1 1 3 

Human Development 3 1 1 5 

Introduction to Abnormal Psychology 1  1 2 

Introduction to Economics 1 1 1 3 

Introduction to GIS   1 1 

Introduction to History  1  1 

Introduction to Political Science  1  1 

Introduction to Psychology, Part I 2 1 2 5 

Introduction to Psychology, Part II 2 1 1 4 

Principles of Economics: Macroecono 1 2 2 5 

Principles of Economics: Microecono 3 3 3 9 

Psychology and Human Relations 2  1 3 

Religion in the United States to 18   1 1 

Social Problems 1  4 5 

Social Problems (OER)  1  1 

The Holocaust 1 2 1 4 

US Government: Foundations and Prin 1 1 1 3 

Western Civilization: Ancient to M 1 1 1 3 

Western Civilization: Medieval to E 1 1 1 3 

Western Civilization: Modern Europe 1 1 1 3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Completion Rate By department:   
Passing Percentage 

 

Dept:  2017 2018 2019 3-year Passing Rate 

Art/Hum 87.19% 90.85% 87.11% 88.45% 

CG 78.49% 77.81% 71.10% 75.68% 

COMM 83.40% 88.19% 89.58% 87.26% 

MTH 75.81% 74.46% 72.93% 74.48% 

RDWR 75.38% 71.02% 74.07% 73.37% 

Science 77.06% 80.97% 71.96% 76.65% 

SocScience 89.62% 88.38% 82.37% 86.86% 
 

81.47% 81.12% 77.94% 80.23% 

Completion rate is percentage of students on class roster at census date who complete the class with a grade of A, B, C or P. The percentage 
of students who were unsuccessful incudes students who received a grade of D, F, NP, AU (audit) or W for the course.  

 

Completion Rate by Department by Sex: 

  
2017 2018 2019 

Department:  Passed Passed Passed 

Art/Hum 87.2% 90.9% 87.1% 

Women 88.6% 90.6% 86.9% 

Men 84.2% 91.5% 87.6% 

CG 78.5% 77.8% 71.1% 

Women 89.3% 79.3% 76.0% 

Men 62.4% 73.9% 58.6% 

Agenda Item 5.c.2 
March 1, 2021



47 
 

COMM 83.4% 88.2% 89.6% 

Women 82.0% 87.6% 92.1% 

Men 86.0% 89.5% 85.6% 

MTH 75.8% 74.5% 72.9% 

Women 80.6% 74.8% 75.7% 

Men 67.0% 73.8% 68.4% 

RDWR 75.4% 71.0% 74.1% 

Women 79.2% 67.5% 74.2% 

Men 69.7% 80.9% 73.8% 

Science 77.1% 81.0% 72.0% 

Women 80.5% 83.7% 72.8% 

Men 70.5% 73.3% 70.1% 

SocScience 89.6% 88.4% 82.4% 

Women 91.1% 92.8% 84.1% 

Men 86.7% 79.0% 78.9% 

Grand Total 81.5% 81.1% 77.9% 

 

Completion Rate by Department by Race/Ethnicity:  
2017 2018 2019 

Department:  Passed Passed Passed 

Art/Hum 87.2% 90.9% 87.1% 

White 84.7% 89.6% 84.4% 

Undisclosed 86.7% 96.7% 87.0% 

Latinx 93.4% 91.3% 96.8% 

CG 78.5% 77.8% 71.1% 

White 77.1% 79.2% 72.0% 

Undisclosed 70.0% 75.8% 63.3% 

Latinx 88.9% 75.0% 71.9% 

COMM 83.4% 88.2% 89.6% 

White 84.0% 88.9% 86.4% 

Undisclosed 92.9% 82.4% 96.6% 

Latinx 78.7% 88.9% 95.8% 

MTH 75.8% 74.5% 72.9% 

White 74.7% 76.1% 72.0% 

Undisclosed 75.0% 84.1% 70.8% 

Latinx 80.6% 61.5% 76.7% 

RDWR 75.4% 71.0% 74.1% 

White 71.2% 73.9% 77.0% 

Undisclosed 75.0% 69.1% 75.4% 

Latinx 89.5% 63.6% 64.7% 

Science 77.1% 81.0% 72.0% 

White 77.0% 84.2% 69.2% 

Undisclosed 79.4% 68.2% 78.6% 

Latinx 75.0% 78.7% 76.1% 

SocScience 89.6% 88.4% 82.4% 

White 86.4% 90.7% 80.9% 

Undisclosed 95.7% 87.9% 76.8% 

Latinx 92.5% 81.1% 90.1% 

Grand Total 81.5% 81.1% 77.9% 

Agenda Item 5.c.2 
March 1, 2021



48 
 

 

Program Enrollment and Productivity 

Total FTE: 

Department 2017 2018 2019 Grand Total 

Art/Hum 34.294106 29.074502 25.14901 88.51762 

CG 8.303916 10.115682 10.41764 28.83724 

Comm 11.301958 13.545093 13.80392 38.65097 

MTH 54.590179 45.703907 46.67449 146.9686 

RD/WR 28.298031 32.396068 29.72156 90.41566 

Science 35.501946 53.145087 44.92743 133.5745 

SocScience 40.462733 30.260775 32.4392 103.1627 

Grand Total 212.752869 214.241114 203.1333 630.1272 

 

Full-time equivalent faculty (FTEF): 

Department 2017 2018 2019 

Art/Hum 0.714 0.606 0.524 

CG 0.173 0.211 0.217 

Comm 0.235 0.282 0.288 

MTH 1.137 0.952 0.972 

RD/WR 0.590 0.675 0.619 

Science 0.740 1.107 0.936 

SocScience 0.843 0.630 0.676 

Grand Total 4.432 4.463 4.232 

 

Note: FTEF is calculated on the basis of an average full-time faculty load of teaching 16 credits per quarter, or 48 credits over fall, winter, 

and spring quarters. This estimates the teaching load being carried by faculty in this program.  

 

Fill Rate: Fill rate represents the total enrollment in Transfer program course sections as a percentage of available seats. As such it is an 

indication of capacity available within the program to accommodate increases in enrollment. 

 

Department 2017 2018 2019 Grand Total 

Art/Hum 49.0% 53.3% 58.7% 53.1% 

CG 56.0% 56.8% 56.4% 56.4% 

Comm 47.7% 51.2% 47.1% 48.6% 

MTH 58.4% 54.6% 48.8% 53.8% 

RD/WR 43.4% 57.5% 57.4% 52.1% 

Science 37.6% 54.7% 45.7% 46.1% 

SocScience 64.4% 58.7% 47.7% 56.3% 

Grand Total 51.0% 55.4% 51.0% 52.3% 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Program Outcomes 

Demographics- the tables below describe all new students at TBCC during these years, no matter which term they began. Persistence and 

retention rate data are calculated using only those students who start in fall term.  

Program Majors by Gender  
Women 

 
Men 

 

Degree Goal N % N % 

Assoc of Arts Oregon Transfer 72 68.57% 33 31.43% 

Agenda Item 5.c.2 
March 1, 2021



49 
 

2017 25 65.79% 13 34.21% 

2018 28 68.29% 13 31.71% 

2019 19 73.08% 7 26.92% 

Assoc of General Studies 98 56.98% 74 43.02% 

2017 39 54.17% 33 45.83% 

2018 36 59.02% 25 40.98% 

2019 23 58.97% 16 41.03% 

Assoc of Science 51 83.61% 10 16.39% 

2017 13 86.67% 2 13.33% 

2018 22 78.57% 6 21.43% 

2019 16 88.89% 2 11.11% 

Grand Total 221 65.38% 117 34.62% 

 

 

Program Majors by Race/Ethnicity  
White 

 
Latinx 

 
Undisclosed 

Identities 

 

 

Degree Goal 

N % N % N % 

Assoc of Arts Oregon 

Transfer 

72 68.57% 25 23.81% 8 7.62% 

2017 28 73.68% 6 15.79% 4 10.53% 

2018 25 60.98% 13 31.71% 3 7.32% 

2019 19 73.08% 6 23.08% 1 3.85% 

Assoc of General Studies 123 71.51% 30 17.44% 19 11.05% 

2017 52 72.22% 9 12.50% 11 15.28% 

2018 41 67.21% 13 21.31% 7 11.48% 

2019 30 76.92% 8 20.51% 1 2.56% 

Assoc of Science 47 77.05% 9 14.75% 5 8.20% 

2017 14 93.33% 1 6.67% 
 

0.00% 

2018 21 75.00% 5 17.86% 2 7.14% 

2019 12 66.67% 3 16.67% 3 16.67% 

Grand Total 242 71.60% 64 18.93% 32 9.47% 

 

Program Majors by Age  
2017 

 
2018 

 
2019 

 

Degree Goal N % N % N % 

Assoc of Arts Oregon Transfer 38 
 

41 
 

26  

Under 18 
 

0.00% 
 

0.00% 1 3.85% 

18-21 26 68.42% 27 65.85% 21 80.77% 

22-29 8 21.05% 8 19.51% 2 7.69% 

30s 
 

0.00% 4 9.76% 2 7.69% 

30's 1 2.63% 
 

0.00% 
 

0.00% 

40+ 3 7.89% 2 4.88% 
 

0.00% 

  
2017 

 
2018 

 
2019 

 

Agenda Item 5.c.2 
March 1, 2021



50 
 

Degree Goal N % N % N % 

Assoc of General Studies 71  61 
 

39 
 

Under 18 
 

0.00% 1 1.64% 1 2.56% 

18-21 31 43.66% 31 50.82% 18 46.15% 

22-29 14 19.72% 12 19.67% 9 23.08% 

30s 
 

0.00% 8 13.11% 8 20.51% 

30's 11 15.49% 
 

0.00% 
 

0.00% 

40+ 15 21.13% 9 14.75% 3 7.69% 

  
2017 

 
2018 

 
2019 

 

Degree Goal N % N % N % 

Assoc of Science 15 
 

28 
 

18 
 

Under 18 
 

0.00% 2 7.14% 1 5.56% 

18-21 10 66.67% 11 39.29% 12 66.67% 

22-29 3 20.00% 8 28.57% 2 11.11% 

30s 
 

0.00% 4 14.29% 1 5.56% 

30's 2 13.33% 
 

0.00% 
 

0.00% 

40+ 
 

0.00% 3 10.71% 2 11.11% 

 

Persistence to second term:  
Persisted 

 
Dropped 

 

Row Labels N % N % 

Assoc of Arts Oregon Transfer 71 92.21% 6 7.79% 

2017 26 89.66% 3 10.34% 

2018 23 88.46% 3 11.54% 

2019 22 100.00% 
 

0.00% 

Assoc of General Studies 67 77.01% 20 22.99% 

2017 28 75.68% 9 24.32% 

2018 20 64.52% 11 35.48% 

2019 19 100.00% 
 

0.00% 

Assoc of Science 37 90.24% 4 9.76% 

2017 7 77.78% 2 22.22% 

2018 18 90.00% 2 10.00% 

2019 12 100.00% 
 

0.00% 

Grand Total 175 85.37% 30 14.63% 

 

 

 

Retention (year 1 to year 2):  
Retained 

 
Dropped 

 

Major N % N % 

Assoc of Arts Oregon Transfer 41 53.25% 36 46.75% 

2017 18 62.07% 11 37.93% 

2018 13 50.00% 13 50.00% 

Agenda Item 5.c.2 
March 1, 2021



51 
 

2019 10 45.45% 12 54.55% 

Assoc of General Studies 31 35.63% 56 64.37% 

2017 12 32.43% 25 67.57% 

2018 11 35.48% 20 64.52% 

2019 8 42.11% 11 57.89% 

Assoc of Science 16 39.02% 25 60.98% 

2017 3 33.33% 6 66.67% 

2018 8 40.00% 12 60.00% 

2019 5 41.67% 7 58.33% 

Grand Total 88 42.93% 117 57.07% 

 

 Retained  Dropped  

Retention by Sex and Major:  N % N % 

Men 30 41.10% 43 58.90% 

Assoc of Arts Oregon Transfer Average:  15 60.00% 10 40.00% 

2017 7 77.78% 2 22.22% 

2018 4 40.00% 6 60.00% 

2019 4 66.67% 2 33.33% 

Assoc of General Studies Average:  13 31.71% 28 68.29% 

2017 6 26.09% 17 73.91% 

2018 4 36.36% 7 63.64% 

2019 3 42.86% 4 57.14% 

Assoc of Science Average:  2 28.57% 5 71.43% 

2017  0.00% 2 100.00% 

2018 2 50.00% 2 50.00% 

2019  0.00% 1 100.00% 

Women 58 43.94% 74 56.06% 

Assoc of Arts Oregon Transfer Average:  26 50.00% 26 50.00% 

2017 11 55.00% 9 45.00% 

2018 9 56.25% 7 43.75% 

2019 6 37.50% 10 62.50% 

Assoc of General Studies Average:  18 39.13% 28 60.87% 

2017 6 42.86% 8 57.14% 

2018 7 35.00% 13 65.00% 

2019 5 41.67% 7 58.33% 

Assoc of Science Average:  14 41.18% 20 58.82% 

2017 3 42.86% 4 57.14% 

2018 6 37.50% 10 62.50% 

2019 5 45.45% 6 54.55% 

Grand Total 88 42.93% 117 57.07% 

 

 Retained  Dropped  Total N 

Row Labels N % N %  

Latinx 18 43.90% 23 56.10% 41 

Agenda Item 5.c.2 
March 1, 2021



52 
 

Assoc of Arts Oregon Transfer Average:  10 45.45% 12 54.55% 22 

2017 4 66.67% 2 33.33% 6 

2018 3 30.00% 7 70.00% 10 

2019 3 50.00% 3 50.00% 6 

Assoc of General Studies Average:  6 50.00% 6 50.00% 12 

2017 3 75.00% 1 25.00% 4 

2018 2 50.00% 2 50.00% 4 

2019 1 25.00% 3 75.00% 4 

Assoc of Science Average:  2 28.57% 5 71.43% 7 

2017  0.00% 1 100.00% 1 

2018 2 50.00% 2 50.00% 4 

2019  0.00% 2 100.00% 2 

All Other Race/Ethnicities 2 15.38% 11 84.62% 13 

Assoc of Arts Oregon Transfer Average:  1 33.33% 2 66.67% 3 

2017 1 50.00% 1 50.00% 2 

2019  0.00% 1 100.00% 1 

Assoc of General Studies Average:   0.00% 6 100.00% 6 

2017  0.00% 3 100.00% 3 

2018  0.00% 3 100.00% 3 

Assoc of Science Average:  1 25.00% 3 75.00% 4 

2018 1 100.00%  0.00% 1 

2019  0.00% 3 100.00% 3 

White 68 45.03% 83 54.97% 151 

Assoc of Arts Oregon Transfer Average:  30 57.69% 22 42.31% 52 

2017 13 61.90% 8 38.10% 21 

2018 10 62.50% 6 37.50% 16 

2019 7 46.67% 8 53.33% 15 

Assoc of General Studies Average:  25 36.23% 44 63.77% 69 

2017 9 30.00% 21 70.00% 30 

2018 9 37.50% 15 62.50% 24 

2019 7 46.67% 8 53.33% 15 

Assoc of Science Average:  13 43.33% 17 56.67% 30 

2017 3 37.50% 5 62.50% 8 

2018 5 33.33% 10 66.67% 15 

2019 5 71.43% 2 28.57% 7 

Grand Total 88 42.93% 117 57.07% 205 

 

 

Completion:  
Award in 2 Years Award in more than 2 years No award Total # 

Major # % # % # % 
 

AAT 
       

Full Time 5 24% 2 10% 14 67% 21 

Part Time 1 6% 1 6% 14 88% 16 

Agenda Item 5.c.2 
March 1, 2021



53 
 

AGS 
       

Full Time 1 5% 4 21% 14 74% 19 

Part Time 
 

0% 1 2% 46 98% 47 

AST 
       

Full Time 4 33% 2 17% 6 50% 12 

Part Time 
 

0% 
 

0% 8 100% 8 

Grand Total 11 9% 10 8% 102 83% 123 

 

 

 Award in 2 Years  

Award in more 

than 2 years  No award  Total # 

Row Labels # % # % # %  

 Men - Average Rate:  5 9.6% 4 7.7% 43 82.7% 52 

AAT 3 20.0% 1 6.7% 11 73.3% 15 

AGS  0.0% 2 7.7% 24 92.3% 26 

AST 2 18.2% 1 9.1% 8 72.7% 11 

Women - Average Rate: 6 8.5% 6 8.5% 59 83.1% 71 

AAT 3 13.6% 2 9.1% 17 77.3% 22 

AGS 1 2.5% 3 7.5% 36 90.0% 40 

AST 2 22.2% 1 11.1% 6 66.7% 9 

Grand Total 11 8.9% 10 8.1% 102 82.9% 123 

 

 Award in 2 Years  

Award in 

more than 2 

years  No award  Total # 

Row Labels # % # % # %  

Latinx - Average Rate 1 6.3% 3 18.8% 12 75.0% 16 

AAT 1 14.3% 2 28.6% 4 57.1% 7 

AGS  0.0% 1 14.3% 6 85.7% 7 

AST  0.0%  0.0% 2 100.0% 2 

Other Race/Ethnicities Average Rate 0.0% 2 25.0% 6 75.0% 8 

AAT  0.0%  0.0% 2 100.0% 2 

AGS  0.0% 1 20.0% 4 80.0% 5 

AST  0.0% 1 100.0%  0.0% 1 

White Average Rate 10 10.1% 5 5.1% 84 84.8% 99 

AAT 5 17.9% 1 3.6% 22 78.6% 28 

AGS 1 1.9% 3 5.6% 50 92.6% 54 

AST 4 23.5% 1 5.9% 12 70.6% 17 

Grand Total 11 8.9% 10 8.1% 102 82.9% 123 

 

 

 

Note: These data are for students who began with the college in 2014-2015.  

 

 

 

 

 

  

Agenda Item 5.c.2 
March 1, 2021



54 

 
 

Outcomes for Transfer Majors 

 

  Attended 

only 

Attended only 

(still 

Enrolled)  

Transfer to 

Other CC 

with No 

Award 

Transfer to 4 

Year Uni with 

No Award 

Award with 

No Transfer 

Award &  

Transfer to 

Other CC 

Award & 

Transfer to 4 

Year Uni 

Row 

Labels 

% N % N % N % N % N % N % N 

Full-Time 

Students 

37.5

% 

2

1 

5.4% 3 8.9

% 

5 26.8

% 

15 8.9

% 

5 5.4

% 

3 7.1

% 

4 

Part-Time 

Students 

70.7

% 

5

3 

4.0% 3 9.3

% 

7 13.3

% 

10 1.3

% 

1 0.0

% 

 
1.3

% 

1 

Grand 

Total 

56.5

% 

7

4 

4.6

% 

6 9.2

% 

12 19.1

% 

25 4.6

% 

6 2.3

% 

3 3.8

% 

5 

 

Note: The table above displays all transfer students in the 2014-2015 cohort and their best outcome achieved in 4 years.  

 

 

FTE By Major – this is the total FTE produced by students in each of these majors by year 

AGS FTE 

2017 33.46 

2018 46.13 

2019 44.67 

Assoc of Arts Oregon Transfer 
 

2017 35.29 

2018 52.13 

2019 41.60 

Assoc of Science 
 

2017 10.47 

2018 24.74 

2019 15.77 

Grand Total 304.26 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 5.c.2 
March 1, 2021



Agenda Item 5.d 
March 1, 2021 

 
 

 

Accreditation Prep: Shared Governance, College Involvement 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
INFORMATION ONLY 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION ………………………………………………………… President Tomlin 
 
For this month, we will focus the accreditation prep session on shared governance and some of the 
other questions we shared back at the October retreat that could be asked during our visit next fall. 
We will have a discussion on the following topics and questions: 
 

• What is Shared Governance and how does it work at TBCC? 
• How do you communicate with President, staff, faculty? 
• Do you feel your input is considered in college operations? Examples? 
• What is your role in college improvement and student learning? 
• How are you involved at the college? 

 
Our responses and discussion will then be included in the combined accreditation prep handout that 
includes all the sessions we have had since last October. That will be given to the Board this summer 
and will be reviewed in the September Board meeting. 
 
 

 
 



Agenda Item 5.e 
March 1, 2021 

 

 

Financial Report 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
INFORMATION ONLY 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION …………………………………..…………….....………..…..VP Williams 
 
 
The report for the month of January 2021 is available for your review. 
 

 
 



Agenda Item 5.E. Attachment #1
Tillamook Bay Community College
Unaudited Summary Financial Information 
General Fund
Fiscal Year-to-Date Ended January 2021
58.33% of fiscal year elapsed

FY 2019-2020 FY 2020-2021
Annual 01/31/20 Percentage Annual 01/31/21 Percentage
Budget Actual of Budget Budget Actual of Budget

Resources
  Beginning Fund Balance 1,592,675$   1,626,567.03$  102.13% 1,600,000$  1,840,987.35$    115.06%
  State 1,979,868$   1,664,676.61$  84.08% 2,419,566$  1,877,012.37$    77.58%
  Property Taxes 1,336,834$   1,217,060.68$  91.04% 1,402,498$  1,273,525.32$    90.80%
  Local Contracts 74,000$        48,667.00$       0.00% 74,000$       9,600.00$           12.97%
  Tuition 973,507$      646,497.15$     66.41% 942,100$     696,742.94$       73.96%
  Fees 191,406$      138,878.20$     72.56% 231,377$     182,229.00$       78.76%
  Sale of Goods 4,500$          2,242.39$         49.83% 4,500$         3,404.46$           75.65%
  Interest 100,000$      71,255.40$       71.26% 115,000$     29,320.72$         25.50%
  Rental 18,000$        8,490.00$         47.17% 18,000$       6,000.00$           33.33%
  Miscellaneous 10,000$        28,531.63$       285.32% 30,000$       15,655.54$         52.19%
  Transfers 423,175$      50,556.09$       11.95% 412,816$     29,788.97$         7.22%

  Total resources 6,703,965$   5,503,422.18$  82.09% 7,249,857$  5,964,266.67$    82.27%

Expenditures
  Instruction 1,939,492$   941,443.81$     48.54% 2,092,856$  1,130,481.66$    54.02%
  Instructional Support 542,330$      317,639.89$     58.57% 679,872$     356,483.64$       52.43%
  Student Services 544,135$      288,617.48$     53.04% 608,847$     313,714.89$       51.53%
  College Support 1,685,232$   903,747.40$     53.63% 1,824,031$  989,426.85$       54.24%
  Plant Operation 396,855$      209,701.02$     52.84% 383,607$     167,486.36$       43.66%
  Transfers 288,000$      89,640.67$       31.13% 293,000$     99,201.37$         33.86%
  Contingency 107,921$      -$                  0.00% 167,644$     -$                   0.00%

  Total expenditures 5,503,965$   2,750,790.27$  49.98% 6,049,857$  3,056,794.77$    50.53%

Ending fund balance 1,200,000$   2,752,631.91$  229.39% 1,200,000$  2,907,471.90$    242.29%



Agenda Item 5.E. Attachment #2
Tillamook Bay Community College
Unaudited Summary Financial Information (Modified Accrual Basis)
Fiscal Year-to-Date Ended January 2021

2020-2021 2019-2020
Fund Beginning 2020-2021 2020-2021 Ending Spendable Prior Year
No. Fund Balance Revenue Expenditures Fund Balance Budget Expenditures

1/31/2020
Nursing Program Agreement 2010 -$                  -$                   -$                 -$                   40,000$           53,462.00$      
Reser Foundation MIT Expansion 2020 -$                  -$                   -$                 -$                   -$                 3,805.26$        
Tillamook Works 2030 14,611.42$       16,896.52$        43,162.60$      (11,654.66)$       80,342$           -$                 
Dollar General Grant 2150 -$                  -$                   -$                 -$                   10,000$           3,500.00$        
United Way Literacy Grant 2160 -$                  -$                   -$                 -$                   -$                 266.00$           
Pathways Grant 2250 -$                  17,871.48$        20,720.26$      (2,848.78)$         29,707$           5,980.06$        
Industrial Maintenance Tech 2260 32,305.73$       37,500.00$        44,561.70$      25,244.03$        34,904$           2,824.64$        
SBDC Federal Grant 2300 -$                  16,500.00$        19,301.99$      (2,801.99)$         33,000$           28,540.34$      
SBDC State Grant 2310 -$                  29,404.05$        32,658.47$      (3,254.42)$         72,000$           36,159.09$      
SBDC Program Income 2320 98,346.67$       24,904.00$        -$                 123,250.67$      70,337$           22,428.02$      
SBDC Rural Outreach Grant 2330 30,302.65$       -$                   5,813.98$        24,488.67$        10,000$           6,972.35$        
SBDC CARES Act 2331 -$                  17,044.66$        19,915.32$      (2,870.66)$         -$                 -$                 
EDC Contract 2350 -$                  62,169.37$        87,790.99$      (25,621.62)$       155,055$         66,286.79$      
Visit Tillamook Coast Contract 2370 -$                  -$                   -$                 -$                   -$                 129,340.38$    
TEC Vocational Education Grant 2400 -$                  25,575.00$        28,468.76$      (2,893.76)$         52,078$           8,960.06$        
Food Pantry 2480 1,233.69$         -$                   701.04$           532.65$             -$                 -$                 
Connect2Complete 2530 -$                  -$                   -$                 -$                   -$                 6,214.45$        
ASPIRE Program 2540 3,444.32$         -$                   -$                 3,444.32$          -$                 -$                 
Student Success Grant 2560 -$                  79,739.45$        52,245.59$      27,493.86$        70,000$           52,962.53$      
STEP Grant 2580 16,703.56$       31,865.12$        27,017.60$      21,551.08$        42,176$           20,188.42$      
STEP 100% Grant 2581 -$                  -$                   609.18$           (609.18)$            -$                 -$                 
Pathways to Opportunity 2590 9,126.35$         -$                   21,124.39$      (11,998.04)$       18,750$           12,061.68$      
ONWIB Student Success Coach 2595 -$                  -$                   867.59$           (867.59)$            -$                 -$                 
Guided Pathways Implementation 2610 20,810.45$       -$                   -$                 20,810.45$        18,000$           2,836.92$        
CARES Act Institutional - Section 1 2701 -$                  56,714.62$        61,783.60$      (5,068.98)$         -$                 -$                 
CARES Act Institutional - Section 2 2702 -$                  8,106.08$          8,106.08$        -$                   -$                 -$                 
CARES Act Institutional - Section 3 2703 -$                  11,973.04$        12,586.94$      (613.90)$            -$                 -$                 
Partners for Rural Innovation Operations 2890 15,123.52$       10,015.08$        20,285.21$      4,853.39$          39,900$           20,807.78$      
Capital Depreciation & Maintenance Fund 2900 875,802.68$     60,625.19$        -$                 936,427.87$      35,000$           -$                 
Timber Tax Reserve Fund 2910 3,616,304.28$  113,417.66$      -$                 3,729,721.94$   480,200$         -$                 
PRI Capital Maintenance Fund 2920 40,861.59$       40,284.73$        -$                 81,146.32$        20,000$           -$                 
Strategic Investment Fund 2950 1,336,565.22$  6,951.06$          -$                 1,343,516.28$   353,054$         -$                 

  Total Special Fund 6,111,542.13$  667,557.11$      507,721.29$    6,271,377.95$   1,664,503$      483,596.77$    

Schedule of Special Fund borrowing from General Fund Ending Less Ending Cash
Fund Accounts Add Balance

Balance Receivable Liabilities 1/31/2021

Total of Grants that borrow from the General Fund (801.95)$           80,595.76$        -$                 (81,397.71)$       

Total of Grants & Reserves that are not borrowing from the General Fund 6,272,179.90$  1,215.00$          -$                 6,270,964.90$   

  Total Special Fund 6,271,377.95$  81,810.76$        -$                 6,189,567.19$   

Beginning Ending 2020-2021 2019-2020
Fund Fund 2020-2021 2020-2021 Fund Spendable Prior Year
No. Balance Revenue Expenditures Balance Budget Expenditures

Community Education 3100 15,259.72         2,612.00            5,347.93          12,523.79$        21,402             5,821.52          
Driver Education Program 3110 5,790.45           -                    -                   5,790.45$          5,790               3,048.50          
Summer Term Fund 3120 -                    -                    -                   -$                   -                   31,582.82        
TBCC Store 3200 9,227.27           1,819.16            221.95             10,824.48$        4,550               766.58             
Customized Training Projects 3300 12,771.29         4,975.00            659.22             17,087.07$        32,595             12,086.33        
Truck Driving Program 3310 (14,412.06)        81,700.00          43,724.44        23,563.50$        223,875           59,709.35        
Truck Driving Simulator 3320 (3,965.21)          49,892.98          17,138.41        28,789.36$        29,177             119,143.91      
TBCC Vending 3400 4,754.71           2,272.23            670.47             6,356.47$          8,500               1,310.00          

  Total Enterprise Fund 29,426.17$       143,271.37$      67,762.42$      104,935.12$      325,889           233,469.01$    

PERS Pension Bond Fund 4100 19,257.20         96,827.47          28,895.15        87,189.52$        161,190           31,100.58        
General Obligation Bond Fund 4200 112,905.07       595,478.92        44,752.63        663,631.36$      742,524           50,021.62        

  Total Debt Service Fund 132,162.27$     692,306.39$      73,647.78$      750,820.88$      903,714$         81,122.20$      

Local Match Fund 5250 230,332.03       1,127.48            56,000.00        175,459.51$      60,791             50,000.00        
Grant Construction Fund 5550 (225,008.57)      50,000.00          -                   (175,008.57)$     -                   -                   
Center for Industrial Technology Fund 5551 -                    238,089.06        523,492.00      (285,402.94)$     -                   -                   

  Total Capital Projects Fund 5,323.46$         289,216.54$      579,492.00$    (284,952.00)$     60,791$           50,000.00$      

Associated Students of TBCC 7100 3,949.13           2,371.20            1,038.48          5,281.85$          9,000               2,093.22          
Phi Theta Kappa Honorary Society Fund 7200 1,954.09           1,398.00            1,821.21          1,530.88$          3,800               889.11             
Economic Development Council 7300 -                    -                    -                   -$                   -                   138,222.51      
Economic Development Council - USDA Grant 7310 -                    -                    -                   -$                   -                   25,505.29        
Visit Tillamook Coast 7400 -                    -                    -                   -$                   -                   704,843.28      
Visit Tillamook Coast - Non-TLT Funds 7410 -                    -                    -                   -$                   -                   61,583.30        
Visit Tillamook Coast - RTM Grant 7420 -                    -                    -                   -$                   -                   15,922.60        

  Total Agency Fund 5,903.22$         3,769.20$          2,859.69$        6,812.73$          12,800$           949,059.31$    

PELL Grant 8010 -                    428,719.00        428,719.00      -$                   751,150           471,369.00      
Supplemental Education Opportunity Grant 8020 -                    10,500.00          10,500.00        -$                   16,875             8,820.00          
CARES Act for Students 8090 -                    72,272.00          72,272.00        -$                   -                   -                   
GEER funds for Students 8091 -                    -                    23,001.00        (23,001.00)$       -                   -                   
CARES Act Inst for Students 8092 889.00               889.00             -$                   -                   -                   
Direct Loans 8100 -                    50,567.00          50,567.00        -$                   350,000           86,721.00        
Federal Work Study 8190 -                    3,191.93            3,300.30          (108.37)$            16,944             4,745.27          
Oregon Opportunity Grant 8210 -                    146,800.00        146,308.00      492.00$             250,000           134,100.00      
Chafee Grant 8220 -                    -                    -                   -$                   15,000             -                   
Oregon Promise Grant 8230 -                    50,700.00          48,894.00        1,806.00$          90,000             43,014.00        
Tuition Waivers 8310 4,405.39           -                    126,187.00      (121,781.61)$     10,000             5,150.00          
Board Scholarships 8320 88,679.81         -                    108,780.00      (20,100.19)$       170,000           94,878.10        
Institutional Work Study 8330 42,929.16         -                    135.82             42,793.34$        10,072             2,238.77          
Foundation Scholarships 8340 -                    35,839.13          57,702.21        (21,863.08)$       85,000             51,070.84        
Non-Institutional Scholarships 8400 261.88              42,741.50          34,844.55        8,158.83$          53,328             12,260.89        

  Total Financial Aid Fund 136,276.24$     842,219.56$      1,112,099.88$ (133,604.08)$     1,818,369$      914,367.87$    



Page 1 of 3

Agenda Item 5.E. - Attachment #3

Tillamook Bay Community College
Summary Financial Information - Cash Status
Preliminary for Fiscal Year-to-Date Ended January 2021
58.33% of Budget Period Expended

Budget Actual % Budget Actual % Budget Actual % Budget Actual %

Beginning Cash Balance 1,916,450$    5,848,921$      18,132$         123,588$       
Beginning Fund Balance 1,600,000$    1,840,987$    115.06% 6,035,908$    6,111,542$      101.25% 57,491$         29,426$         51.18% 50,900$         132,162$       0.00%

Resources
  State Aid 2,419,566$    1,877,012$    77.58% -$                  -$                    0.00% -$                  -$                  0.00% -$                  -$                  0.00%
  Grants and Contracts 74,000$         9,600$           0.00% 598,108$       392,774$         65.67% 26,500$         -$                  0.00% -$                  -$                  0.00%
  Tuition and Fees 1,173,477$    878,972$       74.90% 40,150$         24,904$           62.03% 229,000$       75,221$         32.85% -$                  -$                  0.00%
  Local Taxes 1,402,498$    1,273,525$    90.80% -$                  -$                    0.00% -$                  -$                  0.00% 695,724$       593,889$       85.36%
  Timber -$                  -$                  0.00% 612,438$       113,418$         18.52% -$                  -$                  0.00% -$                  -$                  0.00%
  Sale of Goods 4,500$           3,404$           75.64% -$                  -$                    0.00% 6,000$           1,427$           23.78% -$                  -$                  0.00%
  Interest 115,000$       29,321$         25.50% 53,550$         11,861$           22.15% -$                  -$                  0.00% 13,000$         1,597$           12.28%
  Rental 18,000$         6,000$           33.33% 22,000$         3,600$             16.36% -$                  -$                  0.00% -$                  -$                  0.00%
  Miscellaneous 30,000$         15,656$         52.19% 85,700$         65,000$           75.85% 52,000$         51,055$         98.18% -$                  -$                  0.00%
  Transfers 412,816$       29,789$         7.22% 60,791$         56,000$           92.12% -$                  15,569$         0.00% 155,000$       96,820$         62.46%

  Total Revenues 5,649,857$    4,123,279$    72.98% 1,472,737$    667,557$         45.33% 313,500$       143,272$       45.70% 863,724$       692,306$       80.15%

Expenditures
  Salaries and Wages 4,509,600$    2,432,673$    53.94% 423,430$       248,500$         58.69% 164,969$       37,010$         22.43% -$                  -$                  0.00%
  Operating Expenditures 1,049,613$    524,921$       50.01% 321,520$       160,686$         49.98% 105,957$       13,021$         12.29% 1,600$           1,600$           100.00%
  Capital Outlay 30,000$         -$                  0.00% 15,000$         55,598$           370.65% 35,000$         16,082$         0.00% -$                  -$                  0.00%
  Debt Service -$                  -$                  0.00% -$                  -$                    0.00% -$                  -$                  0.00% 902,114$       72,048$         7.99%
  Transfers 293,000$       99,201$         33.86% 397,553$       42,937$           10.80% 12,763$         1,649$           12.92% -$                  -$                  0.00%
  Other budgetary accounts (Note 1) 167,644$       -$                  0.00% 6,248,935$    -$                    0.00% 7,200$           -$                  0.00% -$                  -$                  0.00%

  Total expenditures 6,049,857$    3,056,795$    50.53% 7,406,438$    507,721$         6.86% 325,889$       67,762$         20.79% 903,714$       73,648$         8.15%

Ending Fund Balance 1,200,000$    2,907,471$    102,207$       6,271,378$      45,102$         104,936$       10,910$         750,820$       

Adjustments to bring Ending Fund
  Balance to Ending Cash Balance
     Assets
          Receivables 269,293$       81,811$           21,400$         35,594$         
          Inventories 797$              -$                    932$              -$                  
               NET EFFECT ON CASH (270,090)$      (81,811)$          (22,332)$        (35,594)$        
     Liabilities
          Accounts Payable 36,390$         -$                    -$                  -$                  
          Unearned Revenue (Note 2) 65,782$         -$                    -$                  35,594$         
          Payroll 212,987$       -$                    -$                  -$                  
               NET EFFECT ON CASH 315,159$       -$                    -$                  35,594$         

NET ADJUSTMENTS 45,069$         (81,811)$          (22,332)$        -$                  

ENDING CASH BALANCE 2,952,540$    6,189,567$      82,604$         750,820$       

General Fund Special Fund Enterprise Fund Debt Service Funds



Page 2 of 3

Agenda Item 5.E. - Attachment #3

Tillamook Bay Community College
Summary Financial Information - Cash Status
Preliminary for Fiscal Year-to-Date Ended January 2021
58.33% of Budget Period Expended

Beginning Cash Balance
Beginning Fund Balance

Resources
  State Aid
  Grants and Contracts
  Tuition and Fees
  Local Taxes
  Timber 
  Sale of Goods
  Interest
  Rental
  Miscellaneous
  Transfers

  Total Revenues

Expenditures
  Salaries and Wages
  Operating Expenditures
  Capital Outlay
  Debt Service
  Transfers
  Other budgetary accounts (Note 1)

  Total expenditures

Ending Fund Balance

Adjustments to bring Ending Fund
  Balance to Ending Cash Balance
     Assets
          Receivables
          Inventories
               NET EFFECT ON CASH
     Liabilities
          Accounts Payable
          Unearned Revenue (Note 2)
          Payroll
               NET EFFECT ON CASH

NET ADJUSTMENTS

ENDING CASH BALANCE

Budget Actual % Budget Actual % Budget Actual %

5,323$           5,903$           138,031$       
5,791$           5,323$           91.92% 2,800$           5,903$           210.82% 125,828$       136,276$       108.30%

-$                  -$                  0.00% -$                  -$                  0.00% -$                  -$                  0.00%
-$                  -$                  0.00% -$                  -$                  0.00% 1,483,150$    763,629$       51.49%
-$                  -$                  0.00% -$                  -$                  0.00% -$                  -$                  0.00%
-$                  -$                  0.00% -$                  -$                  0.00% -$                  -$                  0.00%
-$                  -$                  0.00% -$                  -$                  0.00% -$                  -$                  0.00%
-$                  -$                  0.00% -$                  -$                  0.00% -$                  -$                  0.00%

5,000$           1,127$           22.54% -$                  -$                  0.00% -$                  -$                  0.00%
-$                  -$                  0.00% -$                  -$                  0.00% -$                  -$                  0.00%

50,000$         288,090$       0.00% 3,000$           1,398$           46.60% 135,000$       78,581$         58.21%
-$                  -$                  0.00% 8,000$           2,371$           29.64% 130,000$       10$                0.01%

55,000$         289,217$       525.85% 11,000$         3,769$           34.26% 1,748,150$    842,220$       48.18%

-$                  -$                  0.00% 6,185$           289$              4.67% 26,341$         3,285$           12.47%
-$                  -$                  0.00% 6,615$           2,571$           38.87% 1,789,528$    1,108,043$    61.92%
-$                  523,492$       0.00% -$                  -$                  0.00% -$                  -$                  0.00%
-$                  -$                  0.00% -$                  -$                  0.00% -$                  -$                  0.00%

60,791$         56,000$         92.12% -$                  -$                  0.00% 2,500$           772$              0.00%
-$                  -$                  0.00% -$                  -$                  0.00% -$                  -$                  0.00%

60,791$         579,492$       953.25% 12,800$         2,860$           22.34% 1,818,369$    1,112,100$    61.16%

-$                  (284,952)$      1,000$           6,812$           55,609$         (133,604)$      

-$                  -$                  -$                  
-$                  -$                  -$                  
-$                  -$                  -$                  

-$                  -$                  -$                  
-$                  -$                  -$                  
-$                  -$                  -$                  
-$                  -$                  -$                  

-$                  -$                  -$                  

(284,952)$      6,812$           (133,604)$      

9,563,787$    

Financial Aid FundAgency FundCapital Projects Funds



Page 3 of 3

A33Cell:
Note 1. Contingency in the General Fund and Enterprise Fund and Reserves in Special Fund.Comment:

A47Cell:
Note 2. Assessed but unreceived property taxes and deferred tuition and fees when applicable.Comment:



Agenda Item 5.f 
March 1, 2021 

 

 

President’s Report 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
INFORMATION ONLY 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION …………………………………..……………............…President Tomlin 
 
Upcoming Dates: 

• The next Board meeting is scheduled for Monday, April 5. The Executive Session will be at 5pm 
with the Board meeting startng at 6pm. 

• The Budget Committee meeting is scheduled for Monday, April 12 at 5pm on Zoom. 
• Spring Break for TBCC is March 29-April 2. 

 
Updates: 

• Exploring new Nursing Program for TBCC 
• 2021 Legislative session update- legislation affecting community colleges 
• EDA grant for improvements to Center for Industrial Technology 
• CTE Space Needs Task Force progress 

 
 

 
 



Agenda Item 6 
March 1, 2021 

 

 
Board Member Discussion Items 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
INFORMATION ONLY 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION………………………………………………………Chair Gervasi 



Agenda Item 7 
March 1, 2021 

 

 
Adjournment 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
ACTION ITEM 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION…………………………………………….. (Action) Chair Gervasi 
MOTION TO ADJOURN THE MEETING 



Agenda Item 8 
March 1, 2021 

 

 
Executive Session 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
INFORMATION ONLY 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION…………………………………………….. (Action) Chair Gervasi 
MOVE TO THE EXECUTIVE SESSION OF THE MEETING. 
 
Pursuant to O.R.S. § 192.660 (2)(i) legal notice is hereby given to the members of the Tillamook 
Bay Community College Board of Education (Board) and to the general public that the Board 
has elected to go into Executive Session for the purpose of discussing personnel related issues 
on Monday, February 1, 2021 at 7:00pm in a virtual format.  
 
 
 
 


	00 March 1 2021 Board Meeting Agenda (2)
	20210301_1 Call to Order
	20210301_2 Approve Consent Agenda
	20210301_2A Approve agenda
	20210301_2B Approve February Minutes
	20210301_2C Personnel Reportpr
	20210301_3 Public Comment
	20210301_4 New Business
	20210301_4A Budget Assumptions 21-22
	20210301_4B Budget Committee Memb
	20210301_4B1 Roossinck App
	20210301_4C Tuition Fees 21-22
	URecommendation
	first reading – Proposed tuition and fee schedule for 2021-2022
	Presented here for first reading is the proposed 2021-2022 Tuition and Fee Schedule. Proposed changes from 2020-21 are shown below.  The current average tuition rate for Community Colleges in Oregon is $110.33 for 2020-2021.  In addition, the current ...

	20210301_4D College Council Update
	20210301_4E Revised Policies 100&101
	20210301_4E1 Policy 100 Board Duties
	20210301_4E2 Policy 101 Board Mtg Procedures
	20210301_4F Academic Calendar Approval
	20210301_4F1_PROPOSEDAcademic Calendar 21_22
	Calendar

	20210301_5 Information Only
	20210301_5A Board Appreciation
	20210301_5B C2C_FirstClassSchol Notes
	20210301_5C ProgRev_ GenEd&Transfer
	20210301_5C1_General Education
	General Education  
	What is General Education?
	Findings of Interest…
	Successes
	Areas for Improvement
	Next steps…
	Knowledge Check

	20210301_5C2_Gen Ed Program Review1920
	20210301_5D Accreditation Prep
	20210301_5E Financial Report
	20210301_5E.1 Financial Report Attachment 1
	Sheet 1

	20210301_5E.2 Financial Report Attachment 2
	Sheet 1

	20210301_5E.3 Financial Report Attachment 3
	A

	20210301_5F Presidents Report
	20210301_6 Board Discussion
	20210301_7 Adjournment
	20210301_8 Executive Session



